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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Legal form and principal activity

The address of its registered office is: 13th floor, Civic Towers, Ozumba Mbadiwe, Victoria Island, Lagos.

Operating results:
The following is a summary of the Company’s operating results:

31-Dec-2017 31-Dec-2016
N’000 N’000

Gross premium written 3,684,406               3,270,883               
Profit before taxation 1,834,356               1,006,642               
Taxation (241,561)                (251,887)                
Profit after taxation 1,592,795               754,755                  
Transfer to contingency reserve (159,279)      (75,475)        
Retained earnings for the year 1,433,516               679,280                  
Retained earnings beginning of year 2,062,954     1,383,674     
Retained earnings, end of year 3,496,470               2,062,954               

Earnings per share – basic 64k 38k

Dividend

Directors and their interests
The directors of the Company who held office during the year were as follows:

Jim Ovia Chairman
Chukwuemeke Igumbor Managing director
Elaine Delaney Non-executive director 
Matthew Lilley Non-executive director (appointed 9 August 2017)
Julian Adams Non-executive director (appointed 9 August 2017)
Nicholas Ranson Executive director (appointed 9 August 2017)
Sean Fraser Non-executive director (appointed 20 October 2017)
Kwasi Osei Non-executive director (appointed 9 August 2017)
Professor Oyewusi Ibidapo-Obe Non-executive (Independent) Director
Ebelechukwu Nwachukwu Non-executive director (retired 9 August 2017)
Joseph Onwubuya Non-executive director (retired 9 August 2017)
Victor Abulele Non-executive (Independent) director (retired 9 August 2017)

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report on the affairs of Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Company Limited 
("The Company"), together with the audited financial statements and the auditor's report for the year ended 31 December  
2017.

The Company's principal activities are the provision of life assurance services, claims settlement and undertaking investment
activities.

No interim or final dividend was declared during the year (2016: Nil)

Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Company was incorporated in Nigeria on 30 March 2001 under the Companies and Allied
Matters Act as a private limited liability company, and is domiciled in Nigeria. 

In July 2017, 51% of total shareholding of the Company was bought by Prudential Africa Holdings Limited a subsidiary of 
Prudential Plc. In Novemeber 2017, the name was changed to Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Limited.
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2017 2017
No. of Shares % Holding

Prudential Africa Holdings Limited 1,530,000,000 51%
Veritas Registrars Limited 1,470,000,000 49%

3,000,000,000 100%

2016 2016
No. of Shares % Holding

Veritas Registrars Limited 1,999,999,999 100%
Paradox Limited 1 0%

2,000,000,000 100%

The analysis of the distribution of the shares of the Company at the end of the financial year is as follows:

31 December 2017

No. of 
Shareholders

% of Holdings No. of Holdings

1                       49% 1,470,000,000        
1                       51% 1,530,000,000        
2                       100% 3,000,000,000        

31 December 2016
No. of 

Shareholders
% of Holdings No. of Holdings

1                       0% 1                            
1                       100% 1,999,999,999        

2                       100% 2,000,000,000        

Directors' interest in contracts

Property and equipment

The Company made no contributions to charitable and non-political organisations during the year (2016: Nil)

Total

Share range

1-1,500,000,000
1,500,000,000-3,000,000,000

Local Shareholders
1-1,000,000,000
1,000,000,000-2,000,000,000

Analysis of shareholding

Share range

Local  & International Shareholders

The called-up and fully paid-up shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017 were beneficially held as follows:
Ownership structure

Total

None of the directors has notified the Company, for the purpose of section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, of 
their direct or indirect interest in contracts or proposed contracts with the Company during the year.

Information relating to changes in property and equipment during the year is given in Note 17 to the financial statements.

Donations and charitable gifts
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Gender analysis

Male Female Male Female
Number Number Percentage Percentage

Employees 13 12 52% 48%

Gender  analysis of the board and top management is as follows:
Board 8 1 89% 11%
Top Management 8 3 73% 27%

Detailed analysis of the board and top management is as follows:
Assistant Manager 1 0 100% 0%
Deputy Manager 4 1 80% 20%
Manager 0 0 0% 0%
Senior Manager 0 1 0% 100%
Principal Manager 0 1 0% 100%
Assistant General Manager 1 0 100% 0%
Executive Director 2 0 100% 0%
Non-executive Director 6 1 86% 14%

Male Female Male Female
Number Number Percentage Percentage

Employees 12 8 60% 40%

Gender  analysis of the board and top management is as follows:
Board 5 2 71% 29%
Top Management 4 2 67% 33%

The Company's employees are adequately insured against occupational hazards. In addition, medical facilities at specified 
limits are provided to employees and their immediate families at the Company's expense.

The Company operates a non-discriminatory policy on recruitment. Applications by disabled persons are always fully 
considered, bearing in mind the respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicants concerned. In the event of members of 
staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Company continues and that 
appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the Company that the training, career development and promotion of 
disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical with those of other employees. During the year under review, there 
was no disabled person in the Company's employment.

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Employment of disabled persons

Health, safety and welfare of employees

Employee training and involvement

The number and percentage of males and females employed during the financial year vis-à-vis total workforce was as 
follows:

The Company places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued its practice of keeping them
informed on matters affecting them as employees and the various factors affecting the performance of the Company. This is
achieved through regular meetings between management and staff of the Company.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

(a) Forward-Looking Statements

•

•

•

• failure of the Company to manage its relationship with Brokers and Insurance Agents;

Reference in this MD&A to the “Company” means "Zenith Life Assurance Company Limited", which has recently 
been renamed "Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Limited".

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is designed to provide the reader with a greater 
understanding of the Company’s business, business strategy and performance, as well as how it manages risk and 
capital resources.

These forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results
or events to differ materially from current expectations, including, but not limited to:

It is intended to enhance the understanding of the audited annual financial statements and accompanying notes,
and should therefore be read in conjunction with these documents.

The Company’s quarterly and annual financial statements, its Annual returns form and other financial documents
are available in our offices and with the National Insurance Commission.

Unless otherwise indicated, all financial information presented in this MD&A, including tabular amounts, is in
Nigeria Naira and is prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

This Annual Report – Financial Review for Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Company Limited contains forward-
looking statements about the Company’s objectives, plans, goals, aspirations, strategies, financial condition, results
of operations, cash flows, performance, prospects and opportunities. These forward-looking statements are typically
identified by words such as “anticipate”, “expect”, “believe”, “foresee”, “could”, “estimate”, “goal”,“intend”,
“plan”, “seek”, “strive”, “will”, “may” and “should” and similar expressions, as they relate to the Company and its
management.
The forward-looking statements in this document reflects the Company’s expectations as at 2 March 2018 when the
Company’s Board of Directors approved this document, and are subject to change after this date. These forward-
looking statements are not historical facts but reflect the Company’s current expectations concerning future results
and events. They also reflect management’s current assumptions regarding the risks and uncertainties referred to
below and their respective impact on the Company. The Company does not undertake any obligation to update
publicly or to revise any such forward-looking statements, unless required by applicable legislation or regulation.

failure by the Company to maintain appropriate records to support its compliance with accounting, tax or legal 
rules, regulations and policies;

failure to realize revenue growth, anticipated cost savings or operating efficiencies from the Company’s major
initiatives, including investments in the Company’s IT systems, or unanticipated results from these initiatives; the
inability of the Company’s IT infrastructure to support the requirements of the Company’s business; heightened
competition, whether from current competitors or new entrants to the marketplace; changes in economic conditions
including the rate of inflation or deflation, changes in interest and currency exchange rates and derivative and
commodity prices; public health events including those related to food safety; 

the inability of the Company to manage receivables to minimize the impact of inability to collect the premiums due;
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•

• supply and quality control issues with vendors;

• changes to or failure to comply with laws and regulations affecting the Company and its business;

•

•

•

(b) Overview of Our Business and Strategy

(c) Vision and Strategies 

Our Board

Our Business

·         Life insurance services
·         Investment linked services

Our Reinsurance

The Company offers unique, customer based products to clients in various sectors. The services we offer include:

The Company underwrites with the support of various reinsurance companies and brokers to help ensure its risk 
management is always optimal. We also consult with reinsurance companies and brokers on technical issues. Our 
Reinsurers are Africa Reinsurance Corporation and Continental Reinsurance Plc

The Company aims to provide long term value to its clients by offering innovative products that provide protection 
and meet their growing needs. The Company provides life insurance and savings products to protect its customers 
against adverse events.

This is not an exhaustive list of the factors that may affect the Company’s forward-looking statements. Other risks
and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that the Company presently believes are not material
could also cause actual results or events to differ materially from those expressed in its forward-looking statements.

Additional risks and uncertainties are discussed in the Company’s Enterprise Risks and Risk Management section
of this MD&A.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect the
Company’s expectations only as of the date of this MD&A. The Company disclaims any intention or obligation to
update or revise these forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise, except as required by law.

The Company was incorporated in 30 March 2001 to carry out the business of Life Assurance. The Company is a
subsidiary of Prudential Africa Holdings Limited and it is domiciled in Nigeria.

The company’s growth, since its incorporation, is premised upon sound business standards and the 
uncompromising integrity and dedication of its directors, led by Mr. Jim Ovia.

the inability of the Company to collect on its  brokers/insurance companies  receivables.

reliance on the performance and retention of third-party service providers including those associated with the
Company’s supply chain;

changes in the Company’s income, commodity, other tax and regulatory liabilities including changes in tax laws,
regulations or future assessments;

the risk that the Company would experience a financial loss if its counterparties fail to meet their obligations in
accordance with the terms and conditions of their contracts with the Company; and
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(d) Revenue and Underwriting Activities 

Items Current period Prior period Change
2017 2016

N'000 N'000  %
Gross premium written 3,684,406              3,270,883                  13%
Gross premium earned 3,534,893              3,344,234                  6%
Reinsurance expenses (930,950)                (634,679)                   47%
Net premium income 2,603,943              2,709,555                  -4%
Fees and commision income 195,533                 167,939                     16%
Net underwriting income 2,799,476              2,877,494                  -3%
Profit before taxation 1,834,356              1,006,642                  82%
Taxation (241,561)                (251,887)                   -4%
Profit after taxation 1,592,795              754,755                     111%

(e) Financial Condition 

Financial Profile
2017 2016

N'000 N'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,505,706                  1,424,454                  
Financial assets
     Investment securities held to maturity 7,336,339                  4,897,009                  
     Investment securities available for sale 102,642                     65,173                       
     Loans and receivables 3,413                         27                              
     Trade receivables 34,435                       66,441                       
     Reinsurance assets 1,280,571                  1,631,377                  
Deferred acquisition cost 43,812                       38,613                       
Other receivables and prepayments 142,185                     199,576                     
Deferred tax asset 444,828                     571,936                     
Intangible assets 8,933                         19,797                       
Property and equipment 48,800                       32,649                       
Statutory deposits 200,000                     200,000                     
Total assets 11,151,664                9,147,052                  

Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 3,089,229                  3,590,685                  
Investment contract liabilities 449,136                     752,652                     
Trade payables 136,319                     60,151                       
Provisions and other payables 111,753                     64,449                       
Current income tax liabilities 187,548                     131,700                     
Total liabilities 3,973,985                  4,599,637                  

Net assets 7,177,679                  4,547,415                  
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(f) Financial Instruments

(g) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

(h) Internal Control over Financial Reporting

(i)

(j) Enterprise Risks and Risk Management

·         Promote a culture of awareness of risk management and compliance within the Company;

·         Assist in developing consistent risk management methodologies and tools across the organization; and

The Company discloses information on the classification and fair value of its financial instruments, as well as on 
the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments, and related risk management in the 2017 audited 
annual financial statements.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of disclosure controls and procedures to
provide reasonable assurance that all material information relating to the Company is gathered and reported to
senior management on a timely basis so that appropriate decisions can be made regarding public disclosure.

Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS).

It should be recognized that due to inherent limitations, any controls, no matter how well designed and operated,
can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluations of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management has also evaluated whether there were changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial
reporting that occurred during the period beginning on January 1, 2017 and ended on December 31, 2017 that
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. Management determined that no material changes occurred during this period.

The Company is committed to establishing a framework that ensures risk management is an integral part of its
activities. To ensure the continued growth and success of the Company, risks are identified and managed through
an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) framework. The Board oversees the ERM framework through approval
of the Company’s risk policies. The ERM framwork assists all areas of the business in managing appropriate levels
of risk tolerance by bringing a systematic approach, methodology and tools for evaluating, measuring and
monitoring key risks. The results of business planning processes are used to identify emerging risks to the
Company, prioritize risk management activities and help develop a risk-based internal audit plan.

Risk is not eliminated through the ERM framework, but rather risks are identified and managed within understood
risk tolerances. The ERM framework is designed to:

·        Facilitate corporate governance by providing a consolidated view of risks across the Company and insight
into the methodologies for identification, assessment, measurement and monitoring of the risks;

·        Enable the Company to focus on its key risks in the business planning process and help optimize financial
performance through responsible risk management.
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(k)  Accounting Policies and Changes 
The Company's accounting policies adopted are consistently applied in the current and preceeding periods.

The annual ORSA is carried out primarily through risk assessments with senior management. Risks are assessed
and evaluated based on the Company’s vulnerability to the risk and the potential impact that the underlying risk
would have on the Company’s ability to execute its strategies and achieve its objectives. Management provides a
regular update to the Board ERM and Governance Committee of the status of the top risks based on significant
changes from the prior update, anticipated impacts in future quarters and significant changes in key risk metrics.

Risk identification and assessments are important elements in the Company’s ERM framework. An annual Own
Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) is completed to assist in the update and identification of financial,
operational, reputational and other risks affecting the Company and to help effectively prioritize the risks.
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Corporate Governance Report

b. Shareholding

2017 2017
No of shares % Holding

Prudential Africa Holdings Limited 1,530,000,000 51%
Veritas Registrars Limited 1,470,000,000 49%

           3,000,000,000 100%

2016 2016
No of shares % Holding

Veritas Registrars Limited 1,999,999,999 100%
Paradox Limited 1 0%

           2,000,000,000 100%

e. Responsibilities of the Board 

a. Introduction 

Company's shareholding is as follows:

c. Board of Directors 
The Board is responsible for driving the Corporate Governance mechanism of the Company.

The Company has in place an effective governance mechanism that not only ensures proper over-sight of its business by 
the Directors and other principal organs of the Company, but also carries on its business in a manner that engenders 
public trust and confidence while meeting the expectations of all stakeholders.

Besides possessing the requisite academic qualifications and experience in Board affairs, Directors are well abreast of
their responsibilities and are conversant with the Company’s business.  

• Providing oversight of senior management; and

• Establishment of the various Committees of the Board including the terms of reference and review of reports of such
Committees to address key areas of the Company’s business.

They are therefore able to exercise sound judgment on matters relating to its business.

d. Board Structure

• Reviewing and providing guidance for the Company’s corporate and business strategy;
The Board is responsible for:

• Review and approval of annual business plans and  monitoring and corporate performance;
• Overseeing major capital expenditures, acquisitions and divestitures;

• Monitoring the effectiveness of the governance practices under which the Company operates and making appropriate
changes as necessary;
• Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting systems, including the internal audit
function and that appropriate systems of control and risk monitoring are in place;

The board is made up of nine (9) directors comprising of seven (7) non-executive directors and two (2 ) executive 
directors. Of the 7 non-executive members, one (1) is an independent member. The Managing Director is responsible 
for the day to day running of the Company, assisted by the Executive Committee.
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Board of Directors 

NAME POSITION 

Mr. Jim Ovia Chairman
Mr. Chukwuemeke Igumbor Managing director
Mrs. Elaine Delaney Non-executive director
Mr. Matthew Lilley Non-executive director (appointed 9 August 2017)
Mr. Julian Adams Non-executive director (appointed 9 August 2017)
Mr. Nicholas Ranson Executive director (appointed 9 August 2017)
Mr. Sean Fraser Non-executive director (appointed 20 October 2017)
Mr. Kwasi Osei Non-executive director (appointed 9 August 2017)
Professor Oyewusi Ibidapo-Obe Non-executive (Independent) director
Mrs. Ebelechukwu Nwachukwu Non-executive director (retired 9 August 2017)
Mr. Joseph Onwubuya Non-executive director (retired 9 August 2017)
Mr. Victor Abulele Non-executive (Independent) director (retired 9 August 2017)

Changes on the Board

Mrs. Elaine Delaney Chairman
Professor Oyewusi Ibidapo-Obe Member
Mr. Matthew Lilley Member
Mr. Chukwuemeke Igumbor Member
Mr. Sean Fraser Member
Mr. Kwasi Osei Member

The Committees of the Board meet quarterly but may hold extraordinary sessions as business of the Company demands.

i. Investment, Finance and General Purpose Committee

The following are the current standing Committees of the Board:

The Board meets at least every quarter but may hold extra-ordinary sessions to address urgent matters requiring the
attention of the Board.

The Board carries out its oversight functions using its various Board Committees. This allows for a deeper attention to
specific matters for the Board. The Committees are set up in line with statutory and regulatory requirements.
Membership of the Committees of the Board is intended to make the best use of the skills and experience of non-
executive directors in particular.

The board members who served on the board during the financial year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

f.  Board Committees 

The Committees have well defined terms of reference setting out their scope of responsibilities.

There were some changes to the composition of the Board in 2017 following the purchase of 51% of the total shares of 
the Company by Prudential Africa Holdings Limited. Three Directors resigned, that is, Ebelechukwu Nwachukwu, 
Joseph Onwubuya and Victor Abulele. Appointed to serve the board during the Extra-ordinary General meeting on the 
9th of August 2017 were, Matthew Lilley, Julian Adams, Nicholas Ranson, Sean Fraser and Kwasi Osei.

This Committee is made up of six (6) members. It is chaired by a Non-executive Director. The Committee considers
large scale investment and procurement by the Company, as well as matters relating to human resources.

The membership of the Committee is as follows:

13



Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Limited (Formerly Zenith Life Assurance Company Limited)
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Mr. Matthew Lilley Chairman
Mrs Elaine Delaney Member
Prof. Oyewusi Ibidapo-Obe Member
Mr. Chukwuemeke Igumbor Member
Mr. Julian Adams Member
Mr. Sean Fraser Member

Prof. Oyewusi Ibidapo-Obe Chairman
Mrs. Elaine Delaney Member
Mr. Matthew Lilley Member
Mr. Julian Adams Member
Mr. Kwasi Osei Member

• reviewing the Company’s material risk exposures, including market, credit, insurance, operational, liquidity and 
economic and regulatory capital risks;

• advising the Board on the risks inherent in strategic transactions and business plans;

• reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s governance framework; and

ii. Enterprise Risk Management and Governance Committee 

The Committee shall be accountable to the Board and shall assist the Board in meeting its responsibility for the 
effectiveness of the Business risk management and governance systems, including:

• approving the Company’s enterprise wide risk management framework;

• reviewing the risk framework and risk policies and ensuring that policies, standards and limits are within the approved 
appetite and tolerance;

• overseeing the asset and liability management issues in relation to the balance sheet management of the Company;

Committee’s Terms of Reference

The Committee is made up of six (6) members. It has oversight responsibility for the overall risk assessment and
governance of various areas of the Company’s operations.  The Committee’s membership comprises the following:

• the Company’s Resources, Development, Personnel Policies and Procedures, Pay and Conditions of Service for staff 
and any other matters which the Company may refer to it from time to time.

Committee’s Terms of Reference

• the Company’s Finances, Financial Policies, Controls;

The Committee shall be accountable to the Board and shall assist the Board in meeting its responsibility for the 
effectiveness of:

• the investment policy and operational framework of the Company to ensure there is sufficient liquidity, compliance 
with applicable regulations, risk management or mitigation strategies and protection of policyholders’ funds;

• formulating, implementing, monitoring and revising strategies relating to the Company’s assets and liabilities and 
ensuring that the Company invests in a manner which enables it to maintain its solvency requirements and capital 
requirements;

iii.  Audit, Compliance & Investment  
The Committee’s membership consists of five (5) Non-executive Directors. It is responsible for oversight of audit and
compliance related matters.

The membership of the Committee is as follows:

• continuously review the Company’s practice to align with the various applicable Codes of Corporate Governance such 
as the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria requirements and the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM) Code 
with particular reference to compliance, disclosures and structure.
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December 2017
Directors Board Finance & General 

Purpose Committee
Risk Management 

Committee

Number of Meetings 5 2 3

Attendance 
Jim Ovia 5 N/A N/A
Elaine Delaney 4 2 2
Professor Oyewusi Ibidapo-Obe 5 2 3
Chukwuemeke Igumbor 5 2 3
Matthew Lilley* 2 1 1
Julian Adams* 1 N/A Nil
Sean Fraser** 2 1 1
Kwasi Osei* 2 1 N/A
Nicholas Ranson* 2 N/A N/A
Abulele Victor*** 3 1 2
Onwubuya Joseph Ndidi*** 3 1 2
Ebelechukwu Nwachukwu*** 3 N/A N/A

*appointed on August 9, 2017
** appointed on October 20, 2017
***resigned on August 9, 2017

• the effectiveness of the Company's system of internal controls, including computerized information systems and 
security; and
• any recommendations by the independent auditor and internal auditor regarding internal control issues and any actions 
taken in response thereto.

To meet with the independent Auditors, Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditor and any other executive both 
individually and/or together, as the Committee deems appropriate at such times as the Committee shall determine to 
discuss and review:

• the terms of engagement for the independent auditors, the scope of the audit, and the procedures to be used;

• the Company's quarterly and audited annual financial statements, including any related notes;

NOTE: 
Frequency of Committee meetings in 2017 were affected by the acquisition process.

• the performance and results of the external and internal audits, including the independent auditors' management letter, 
and management's responses thereto;

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The table below shows the frequency of meetings of the Board of Directors, Board Committees and members’
attendance at these meetings during the year under review.

• the compliance by the Company, management and staff with all established policies of the Company in addition to 
statutory and regulatory requirements in relation to the company’s business including but not limited to the Insurance 
Act, the National Insurance Commission Act and Rules, Regulations, Policies and Circulars made thereto;

Committee’s Terms of Reference
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December 2016
Directors Board Finance & General 

Purpose Committee
Risk Management 

Committee

Number of Meetings 5 4 4

Attendance 
Jim Ovia 5 N/A N/A
Elaine Delaney 4 4 4
Ebelechukwu Nwachukwu 5 4 N/A
Chukwuemeke Igumbor 5 4 4
Onwubuya Joseph Ndidi 5 N/A 4
Abulele Victor 5 4 4
Professor Oyewusi Ibidapo-Obe 5 N/A 4

Members

2017 2016
Number of Meetings 3 4
Attendance 
Professor Oyewusi Ibidapo-Obe 3 4
Elaine Delaney 2 4
Matthew Lilley* 1 N/A
Julian Adams* Nil N/A
Kwasi Osei* 1 N/A
Abulele Victor*** 2 4

*appointed on August 9, 2017
***resigned on August 9, 2017

The table below shows the frequency of meetings of the Audit Committee and members’ attendance at these meetings 
during the year under review:

Audit, Compliance & Investment committee

g. Whistle Blowing Procedure

h. Relationship with Shareholders

The Company has a whistle-blowing policy which provides the procedure for reporting suspected breaches of the
Company’s internal policies, laws and regulations. There is a special portal created on the Company's intranet dedicated
for whistle blowing.  

The Company maintains an effective communication with its shareholders and this has helped improve the
understanding of its business, financial condition, operating performance and trends.  
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Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Limited (Formerly Zenith Life Assurance Company Limited)
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Notes N'000 N'000

Gross premium written 4 3,684,406            3,270,883     
Changes in unearned premium reserve 4 (149,513)              73,351          
Gross premium income 4 3,534,893            3,344,234     
Reinsurance expenses 5 (930,950)              (634,679)      
Net premium income 2,603,943            2,709,555     
Commission income 6 195,533               167,939        
Net underwriting income 2,799,476            2,877,494     
Net claims expenses 7 (1,238,449)           (1,489,433)   
Underwriting expenses 8 (527,142)              (326,317)      
Increase in individual life fund 19(iv) (5,650)                  (3,501)          
Underwriting profit 1,028,235            1,058,243     
Investment income 9(a) 1,255,595            674,163        
Net income on investment contracts 9(b) 112,309               11,151          
Impairment of investment securities available for sale 12(b) -                       (6,572)          

Net income 2,396,139            1,736,985     
Management expenses 10(b) (561,783)              (730,343)      
Profit before tax 1,834,356            1,006,642     
Taxation 23(a) (241,561)              (251,887)      
Profit for the year              1,592,795         754,755 

Other comprehensive income:

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair value changes on available for sale financial assets
- Unrealised net gain/(loss) arising during the year 28 37,469                 (11,116)        
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax                   37,469          (11,116)

Total comprehensive income for the year              1,630,264         743,639 

– Basic earnings per share (in kobo) 29 64                        38                 

The notes on pages 43 to 80 form an integral part of these  financial statements.
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Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Limited (Formerly Zenith Life Assurance Company Limited)
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 31 December 2017

 Share capital 
 Retained 
earnings 

 Fair value 
reserves 

 Statutory 
contingency 

reserve Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

As at 1 January 2017 2,000,000 2,062,954 (8,050)                   492,511 4,547,415           

Profit for the year -                     1,592,795            -                        -                         1,592,795           
Transfer to contingency reserve -                     (159,279)              -                        159,279                 -                      

Other comprehensive income
 Fair value on AFS investment -                     -                       37,469                  -                         37,469                

 Total comprehensive income for the year -                     1,433,516            37,469                  159,279                 1,630,264           

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Additional capital 1,000,000          -                       -                        -                         1,000,000           
As at 31 December 2017 3,000,000          3,496,470            29,419                  651,790                 7,177,679           

 Share capital 
 Retained 
earnings 

 Fair value 
reserves 

 Statutory 
contingency 

reserve Total
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

As at 1 January 2016 2,000,000 1,383,674 3,066                    417,036 3,803,776           

Profit for the year -                     754,755               -                        -                         754,755              
Transfer to contingency reserve -                     (75,475)                -                        75,475                   -                      
Other comprehensive income

 Fair value on AFS investment -                     -                       (11,116)                 -                         (11,116)              
Impairment on AFS securities -                      

 Total comprehensive income for the year -                     679,280               (11,116)                 75,475                   743,639              

As at 31 December 2016 2,000,000          2,062,954            (8,050)                   492,511                 4,547,415           
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Notes N'000 N'000

Premium received from policyholders                  3,770,955                 3,217,400 
Re-insurance premium paid                    (975,130)                   (679,643)
Commission received                     202,898                    188,552 
Commission paid                    (530,415)                   (357,818)
Re-insurance receipt in respect of claims                  1,828,469                 1,287,963 
Claims paid                 (3,319,350)                (2,052,212)
Withdrawals from investment contracts                    (663,004)                   (281,564)
Additions to investment contracts                     388,070                    399,824 
Cash payments for operating expenses                    (231,071)                   (997,880)
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees                    (194,035)                   (130,767)
Tax paid 23                      (58,605)                   (425,857)
Net cash from operating activities                     218,782                    167,998 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of treasury bills                 (7,444,200)                (4,462,678)
Proceeds from liquidation of treasury bills                  6,450,000                 4,750,000 
Purchase of bond investment                 (1,419,481)                   (204,707)
Proceed from liquidation of bonds                     900,000                    900,000 
Interest received on investment                     412,322                    348,082 
Loan additions during the year                        (4,073)                              -   
Loans repayment during the year                            687                             62 
Dividend received                         1,351                        6,044 
Proceeds on disposal of AFS investment                               -                        19,415 
Acquisition of property and equipment 17                      (34,135)                     (34,345)
Acquisition of intangible assets 16                               -                       (13,400)

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities                 (1,137,529)                 1,308,473 

Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividend paid                               -                  (1,800,000)
Additional capital                  1,000,000                              -   

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities                  1,000,000                (1,800,000)

Increase / (decrease) in cash equivalents                       81,253                   (323,529)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                  1,424,453                 1,747,983 
(Increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents                       81,253                   (323,529)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 11                  1,505,706                 1,424,454 

The notes on pages 43 to 80 form an integral part of these  financial statements.
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I General Information

2

3 Basis of Preparation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

(b)  Basis of measurement

Going concern

(c) Use of estimates and judgment

• in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or
• in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Zenith Prudential Life Insurance Limited ("The Company") is a private limited liability company incorporated on 30 
March 2001 to carry out the business of life assurance. In July 2017, 51% of it's shares were purchased by Prudential 
Africa Holdings Limited. 

Statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

The registered office of the Company is: 13th floor Civic Towers, Ozumba Mbadiwe Victoria  Island Lagos.

The principal activities of the Company are the provision of life assurance services, claims settlement and
undertaking investment activities.

• Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
• Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Directors on 2 March 2018.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income, and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised thus:

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements 
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment are disclosed in the notes to the accounts:

The financial statement have been prepared on the going concern basis. The Company has no intention or need to
reduce substantially its business operations. Management believes that the going concern assumption is appropriate
for the Company due to the sufficient capital adequacy ratio and projected liquidity.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with, and comply with, International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS), in the manner required by Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, the Insurance Act of

Nigeria, relevant National Insurance Commission (NAICOM) guidelines and circulars and the Financial Reporting

Council of Nigeria Act (FRCN Act), to the extent that these laws are not in conflict with the requirement of IFRS. 

The financial statement is presented in Naira, which is the Company's functional currency; except where indicated,
financial information presented in Naira has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle under the historical cost 
basis except for the following:

• Held-to-maturity financial assets, loans & receivables and trade receivables are carried at amortised cost.
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The fair value and fair value hierarchy is provided in Note 1.3.4

4 Changes in accounting policies

Standard Key requirement

Going forward, entities will be required to explain changes in their liabilities arising 
from financing activities. This includes changes arising from cash flows (e.g. 
drawdowns and repayments of borrowings) and non-cash changes such as 
acquisitions, disposals, accretion of interest and unrealised exchange differences.
Changes in financial assets must be included in this disclosure if the cash flows 
were, or will be, included in cash flows from financing activities. This could be the 
case, for example, for assets that hedge liabilities arising from financing liabilities.

Entities may include changes in other items as part of this disclosure, for example by 
providing a ‘net debt’ reconciliation. However, in this case the changes in the other 
items must be disclosed separately from the changes in liabilities arising from 
financing activities.
The information may be disclosed in tabular format as a reconciliation from opening 
and closing balances, but a specific format is not mandated.
The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements of IFRS 12 apply to 
interests in entities that are classified as held for sale, except for the summarised 
financial information.

Insurance contract liability is provided in Note 5(t)

Disclosure Initiative – 
Amendments to IAS 7

Recognition of Deferred Tax 
Assets for Unrealised Losses – 
Amendments to IAS 12

Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied the accounting policies as set out in Note 5 to

all periods presented in these financial statements. 

The following new standards and amendments to standards, including any consequential amendments to other 
standards, with date of initial application are applicable to the Company as of 1 January 2017. 

Standards and interpretations effective during the reporting period

Amendments to the following standard(s) became effective in the reporting period from 1st January, 2017. They do 
not have any material impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Company.

Annual improvements 2014-
2016 cycle: Amendments to 
IFRS 12

Amendments made to IAS 12 in January 2016 clarify the accounting for deferred tax 
where an asset is measured at fair value and that fair value is below the asset’s tax 
base. Specifically, the amendments confirm that:
- A temporary difference exists whenever the carrying amount of an asset is less than 
its tax base at the end of the reporting period.
- An entity can assume that it will recover an amount higher than the carrying 
amount of an asset to estimate its future taxable profit.
-Where the tax law restricts the source of taxable profits against which particular 
types of deferred tax assets can be recovered, the recoverability of the deferred tax 
assets can only be assessed in combination with other deferred tax assets of the same 
type.
-Tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deferred tax assets are excluded from 
the estimated future taxable profit that is used to evaluate the recoverability of those 
assets.
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Standard Effective Date
IFRS 15 1/1/2018
IFRS 9 1/1/2018
IFRS 16 1/1/2019
IFRS 17 1/1/2021

IFRS 2 1/1/2018

IAS 40 1/1/2018

IFRS 1 & IAS 28 1/1/2018

IFRS 10 & IAS 28 N/A

Insurance contracts

Share-based payments

Investment Property

Investment Entities: Applying the 

consolidation exception

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012–2014 
Cycle.

Financial instruments
Leases

Commentaries on these new standards/amendments are provided below.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Content

Standards and interpretations issued/amended but not yet effective

The following new or revised standards and amendments which have a potential impact on the Company are not yet 
effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. 
However, the Company's assessments of the new standards and amendments is that they are not expected to have a 
significant impact on its operations and financial position. 

In July 2014, the IASB made further changes to the classification and measurement rules and also introduced a new 
impairment model. With these amendments, IFRS 9 is now complete. The changes introduce:

- a third measurement category (FVOCI) for certain financial assets that are debt instruments
- a new expected credit loss (ECL) model which involves a three-stage approach whereby financial assets move 
through the three stages as their credit quality changes. The stage dictates how an entity measures impairment losses 
and applies the effective interest rate method. A simplified approach is permitted for financial assets that do not 
have a significant financing component (eg trade receivables). On initial recognition, entities will record a day-1 loss 
equal to the 12 month ECL (or lifetime ECL for trade receivables), unless the assets are considered credit impaired.

IFRS 9 - Financial instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the multiple classification and measurement models in IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition 
and measurement with a single model that has initially only two classification categories: amortised cost and fair 
value.
Classification of debt assets will be driven by the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if: a) 
the objective of the business model is to hold the financial asset for the collection of the contractual cash flows, and 
b) the contractual cash flows under the instrument solely represent payments of principal and interest.
All other debt and equity instruments, including investments in complex debt instruments and equity investments, 
must be recognised at fair value.

All fair value movements on financial assets are taken through the statement of profit or loss, except for equity 
investments that are not held for trading, which may be recorded in the statement of profit or loss or in reserves 
(without subsequent recycling to profit or loss).
For financial liabilities that are measured under the fair value option entities will need to recognise the part of the 
fair value change that is due to changes in the their own credit risk in other comprehensive income rather than profit 
or loss.
The new hedge accounting rules (released in December 2013) align hedge accounting more closely with common 
risk management practices. As a general rule, it will be easier to apply hedge accounting going forward. The new 
standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
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In September 2016, the IASB published an amendment to IFRS 4 which addresses the concerns of insurance 
companies about the different effective dates of IFRS 9 Financial instruments and the forthcoming new insurance 
contracts standard. The amendment provides two different solutions for insurance companies: a temporary 
exemption from IFRS 9 for entities that meet specific requirements (applied at the reporting entity level), and the 
‘overlay approach’. Both approaches are optional.
IFRS 4 (including the amendments) will be superseded by the forthcoming new insurance contracts standard. 
Accordingly, both the temporary exemption and the ‘overlay approach’ are expected to cease to be applicable when 
the new insurance standards becomes effective.
The Company has opted to adopt the optional temporary exemption from IFRS 9 as its activities are predominantly 
connected with insurance, that is, the Company will continue to apply the existing financial instrument requirements 
in IAS 39.

IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 
balance sheet. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases and requires 
recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for virtually all lease 
contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases.

The income statement will also be affected because the total expense is typically higher in the earlier years of a lease 
and lower in later years. Additionally, operating expense will be replaced with interest and depreciation, so key 
metrics like EBITDA will change.

Key changes to current practice are:
- Any bundled goods or services that are distinct must be separately recognised, and any discounts or rebates on the 
contract price must generally be allocated to the separate elements.
- Revenue may be recognised earlier than under current standards if the consideration varies for any reasons (such as 
for incentives, rebates, performance fees, royalties, success of an outcome etc) – minimum amounts must be 
recognised if they are not at significant risk of reversal.
- The point at which revenue is able to be recognised may shift: some revenue which is currently recognised at a 
point in time at the end of a contract may have to be recognised over the contract term and vice versa.
- There are new specific rules on licenses, warranties, non-refundable upfront fees and, consignment arrangements, 
to name a few.
- As with any new standard, there are also increased disclosures.

These accounting changes may have flow-on effects on the entity’s business practices regarding systems, processes 
and controls, compensation and bonus plans, contracts, tax planning and investor communications.
Entities will have a choice of full retrospective application, or prospective application with additional disclosures. 
The Company is yet assess the full impact of IFRS 15.

IFRS 16 – Leases

A new five-step process must be applied before revenue can be recognised:
- identify contracts with customers
- identify the separate performance obligation
- determine the transaction price of the contract
- allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and
- recognise the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts 
for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts.
The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to 
a customer – so the notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers
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5 Significant accounting policies

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 as replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. It requires a current measurement 
model where estimates are re-measured each reporting period.

An optional, simplified premium allocation approach is permitted for the liability for the remaining coverage for 
short duration contracts, which are often written by non-life insurers.
There is a modification of the general measurement model called the ‘variable fee approach’ for certain contracts 
written by life insurers where policyholders share in the returns from underlying items. When applying the variable 
fee approach the entity’s share of the fair value changes of the underlying items is included in the contractual service 
margin. The results of insurers using this model are therefore likely to be less volatile than under the general model.
The new rules will affect the financial statements and key performance indicators of all entities that issue insurance 
contracts or investment contracts with discretionary participation features. The Company is yet to assess the full 
impact of IFRS 17.

Operating cash flows will be higher as cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liability are classified 
within financing activities. Only the part of the payments that reflects interest can continue to be presented as 
operating cash flows.

The accounting by lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance 
on the definition of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to 
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company is yet to 
assess the impact of IFRS 16.

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

Contracts are measured using the building blocks of:
- discounted probability-weighted cash flows
- an explicit risk adjustment, and
- a contractual service margin (“CSM”) representing the unearned profit of the contract which is recognised as 
revenue over the coverage period.
The standard allows a choice between recognising changes in discount rates either in the income statement or 
directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect how insurers account for their financial assets 
under IFRS 9.

Except for the changes explained in Note 4 above, the Company consistently applied the following accounting
policies to the periods presented in the financial statements.

Significant accounting policies are defined as those that reflect significant judgments and uncertainties, and
potentially give rise to different results under different assumptions and conditions.

The following new or amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements:

• Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Amendments to IFRS 2).
• Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40).
• Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28).
• Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012–2014 Cycle.
• Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28).
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(a) Foreign currency transactions

(b) Segment reporting

(c) Underwriting activities
(i) Gross premium written

Gross premium income

Gross premium written on life contracts are recognised in the life fund account when payable by the policy holder.

Gross life insurance written premium comprises the total premium receivable for the whole period of cover provided

by contracts entered into during the accounting period and are recognised on the date of inception of the policy.

Premiums on reinsurance inward are included in gross written premiums and accounted for as if the reinsurance was
considered direct business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the 
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined.

Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the premium for the related
direct insurance or reinsurance business assumed.

Premiums on investment products are unbundled and reported as gross premiums during the period.

Gross premium income relates to premium earned net of unearned premium reserves and are stated gross of
commission and recognised when due. Premium earned relates to risks assumed during the period.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Naira at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of
each transaction. Any gain or loss arising from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of the transaction
is included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the 
functional  currency at the spot exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the 
difference  between the amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective 
interest and payments during the year, and the amortised cost in the foreign currency translated at the spot exchange 
rate at the end of the year.

Gross premium written comprises the premiums on insurance contracts entered into during the year, irrespective of
whether they relate in whole or in part to a later accounting period. It is recognised at the point of attachment of risk
to a policy before deducting cost of reinsurance cover and unearned portion of the premium. 

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in profit or loss. However, foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of Available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

An operating segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The
Company’s primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments.

Where applicable, segment results that are reported include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
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(ii) Unearned premiums

(iii) Reinsurance

Reinsurance assets

Prepaid reinsurance

Unearned reinsurance premiums

Reinsurance claims recoveries

Reinsurance payables

(iv) Claims incurred 
Life Business

Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance assets consist of short-term
balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and
benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are
measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in compliance with
the terms of each reinsurance contract. 

Reinsurance recoverables are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and claims
incurred associated with the reinsurer’s polices and are in accordance with the related insurance contract. They are
measured at their carrying amount less impairment charges. Amounts recoverable under reinsurance contracts are
assessed for impairment at each reporting date. If there is objective evidence of impairment, the Company reduces
the carrying amount of its reinsurance assets to its expected recoverable amount and recognizes the impairment loss
in the income statement as a result of an event that occurred after its initial recognition, recognising that the
Company may not recover all amounts due and that the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that
the Company will receive from the reinsurer.

Claims incurred in respect of life business consist of claims arising during the year including provision for
policyholders’ liabilities.

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in the year that relate to periods of risk after the
reporting date. It is computed separately for each insurance contract using a time proportionate basis, or another
suitable basis for uneven risk contracts.

The Company cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business for the purpose of limiting its net potential loss on
policies written. Premiums ceded comprise written premiums ceded to reinsurers, adjusted for the reinsurers’ share
of the movement in the provision for the unearned premiums. Reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company
from its direct obligations to its policyholders.

Prepaid reinsurance cost is determined on a time apportionment basis and is reported under reinsurance assets in the
statement of financial position. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of
reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for the reinsurance contracts entered into by the Company
and are recognised as a payable when incurred. The Company has the right to set-off re-insurance payables against
the amount due from re-insurance and brokers in line with the agreed arrangement beween both parties.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk
after the statement of financial position date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term of the
underlying direct insurance policies for risks-attaching contracts and over the term of the reinsurance contract for
losses-occurring contracts.

Premium ceded, claims reimbursed and commission recovered are reported directly in the Life fund account.
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(v) Underwriting expenses

(d) Commission earned

(e) Investment income

(f) Dividend income

(g) Employee benefits/personnel expenses
Short-term benefits

Post Employment Benefits

(h) Management expenses

Underwriting expenses are made up of acquisition and maintenance expenses comprising commission and policy 
expenses, together with a proportion of staff costs and the insurance supervision levy. Underwriting expenses for 
insurance contracts are recognized as expense when incurred. Underwriting expenses relating to investment 
contracts are also recognised as an expense when incurred and are reported in the investment contract revenue 
account.

Investment income comprises interest income earned on short-term deposits and income earned on trading of 
securities, including all realised and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange 
differences. Investment income is accounted for on an accrual basis. Interest income is recognised in the income 
statement as it accrues and is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Fees and commissions that form an 
integral part of the effective yield of a financial instrument are recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest 
rate of the instrument. When a receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable 
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and 
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.

Short-term employee benefit obligations include wages, salaries and other benefits which the Company has a present 

obligation to pay as a result of employees’ services provided up to the reporting date. The accrual is calculated on an 

undiscounted basis, using current salary rates. A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under 

short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay 

this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Management expenses are expenses other than claims and underwriting expenses. They include depreciation
expenses and other expenses. They are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the profit or loss.

The Company operates a defined contributory retirement scheme as stipulated in the Pension Reform Act 2014.
Under the defined contribution scheme, the Company pays fixed contributions of 13% to a separate entity – Pension
Fund Administrators; employees also pay a fixed contribution of 5% to the same entity. Once the contributions have
been paid, the Company retains no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the Fund does not
hold enough assets to finance benefits accruing under the retirement benefit plan. The Company’s obligations are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Commissions are recognized on ceding business to the reinsurer and are credited to the profit and loss account over
the period the service is provided.

Dividend is recognised as earned in the period in which the right of receipt is established and is stated net of
withholding tax.
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(i) Leases
Lease payments - Lessee

Lease assets – Lessee

Lease assets – Lessor

(j) Income tax

Current tax 

Deferred tax  

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of
the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.

Assets held by the Company under leases that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased asset is initially measured at an amount equal to the lower of
its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

If the Company is the lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the asset to the lessee, then the arrangement is classified as a finance lease and a receivable equal to
the net investment in the lease is recognised and presented within loans and advances

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive
income .

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the terms of the Lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral
part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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(k) Earnings per share

(l) Cash and cash equivalent

(m) Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Classification

• held-to-maturity investments;
• loans and receivables, and 
• available-for-sale financial assets

(ii) Subsequent measurement

(iii) Derecognition: Financial assets

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The classification of financial assets depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated.
The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:

The Company’s financial assets include cash and short term deposits, trade and other receivables, quoted and 
unquoted equity instruments, bonds and treasury bills.

The Company’s financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.  They include: investment contract 
liabilities, creditors and accruals.

Cash and cash equivalent include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with banks and highly liquid 
financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Company in the management of its short term 
commitments.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
that is attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Adjusted EPS is determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted
average number of shares adjusted for bonus shares issued.

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value, which includes directly attributable transaction costs
for financial instruments not classified at fair value through profit and loss. Financial instruments are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial instruments have expired or where the Company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. 

Subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on their classification. Subsequent to initial
measurement, financial instruments are measured either at fair value or amortised cost, depending on their 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial asset
expires; or transfers its right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and rewards of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the asset.
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(iv) Derecognition: Financial liabilities

(v) Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

(vi) Held-to-maturity

• those that the Company designates as available for sale.
• those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

(vii) Available-for-sale

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading. Financial assets 

classified as trading are acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. These investments are 

initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are remeasured at fair value, with gains and 

losses arising from changes in this value recognized in the statement of  profit or loss and other comprehensive 

income in the period in which they arise. The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on 

current bid prices. The fair values of unquoted equities, and quoted equities for which there is no active market, are 

established using valuation techniques corroborated by independent third parties. These may include reference to the 

current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis.

Interest earned and dividends received while holding trading assets at fair value through profit or loss are included in
investment income. Interest income are recognised using effective interest rate.

• sales or reclassification that are so close to maturity that changes in the market interest rate would not have a
significant effect in the financial asset's fair value;

• sales or reclassification attributable to non-recurring isolated events beyond the Company's control that could not
have been reasonably anticipated.

Available for sale financial investments are non-derivative instruments which includes equity and debt securities.
The Company classifies as available-for-sale those financial assets that are generally not designated as another
category of financial assets, and strategic capital investments held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

• sales or reclassification after the Company has collected substantially all of the assets' original principals; and

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed determinable payments and fixed
maturities that management has both the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other than:

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment

losses. A sale or reclassification of more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investment would result in

the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments to Available-for-sale, and would prevent the Company from

classifying investment security as held-to-maturity for the current and following two financial years. However, sales

and reclassification in any of the following circumstances would not trigger a reclassification.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value, with the exception of investments in equity instruments
where fair value cannot be reliably determined, which are carried at cost. Fair values are determined in the same
manner as for investments at fair value through profit or loss. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income while the
investment is held, and are subsequently transferred to the statement of profit or loss upon sale or de-recognition of
the investment.
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(viii) Loans and receivables

(ix) Fair value measurement

Dividends received on available-for-sale instruments are recognised in the income statement when the Company’s
right to receive payment has been established. 

Interest income on available for sale investments are recognised in the profit and loss account using effective
interest rates.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique 
incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair 
value of the consideration paid or received.  If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition 
differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an 
identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the 
financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at 
initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in the statement of profit or 
loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported 
by observable market data or the transaction is closed out. 

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the  Company measures the assets and 
long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price. 

Loans and receivables include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market, other than those classified by the Company at fair value through profit or loss or
available-for-sale.

Loans and receivables consist primarily of staff loans, premium debtors, balances due from reinsurers and other
receivables. These are managed in accordance with a documented policy. 

Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Loans granted at below market rates are fair valued by reference to expected future cash flows and current
market interest rates for instruments in a comparable or similar risk class and the difference between the historical
cost and fair value is accounted for as employee benefits under staff costs in the period over the period of the staff
loan.

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous
market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for
that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred. 
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(x) Amortised cost measurement

(xi) Impairment of financial assets

(xii) Offsetting financial instruments

The Company assesses the premium debtors on both specific and collective impairment test bases. Specific 
impairment on premium debtors are assessed on individually significant receivables based on impairment triggers 
identified by the Company. The amount of loss recognised in the income statement is the difference between the 
carrying amount and discounted present value of expected cash flows at the original effective interest rate.

Subsequent decreases in the amount relating to an impairment loss, that can be linked objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the statement of profit or loss, is reversed through the 
statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss in respect of an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale is 
not reversed through the statement of profit or loss but accounted for directly in equity.

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, 
and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured 
at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest rate method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any 
reduction for impairment.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses statistical modeling of historical trends of the probability of 
default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgment as to whether 
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested 
by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked 
against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Loans and receivables, including premium debtors not specifically impaired are then assessed for collective 
impairment. Loans and receivables not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping 
together the receivables with similar risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognized through profit or loss.  If any loss on the financial asset was previously 
recognized directly in equity as a reduction in fair value, the cumulative net loss that had been recognized in equity 
is transferred to the income statement and is recognized as part of the impairment loss. The amount of the loss 
recognized in the income statement is the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any 
previously recognized impairment loss.

The carrying amounts of these assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective 
evidence of impairment. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or 
more events that have occurred since the initial recognition of the asset have had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset and can be reliably estimated. For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the 
Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are 
individually significant and, on the other hand, collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. 
Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial 
assets are assessed in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. An impairment loss in respect of a 
financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying value and the present 
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or from gains and losses arising 
from a group of similar transactions such as in the Company's trading activities. 
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(n) Insurance contract liabilities
Classification of insurance contract liabilities

Recognition and measurement of insurance contract liabilities

(o) Deferred taxation

(p) Intangible assets
Software
Software acquired by the Company is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Recognition of software acquired is only allowed if it is probable that future economic benefits to 
this intangible asset are attributable and will flow to the Company. 

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both.

Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by 
agreeing to compensate the policy holder or other beneficiary if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) 
adversely affects the policy holder or other beneficiary are classified as insurance contracts. Insurance risk is risk 
other than financial risk, transferred from the holder of the contract to the issuer. 

Contracts that transfer financial risks but not significant insurance risk are classified as investment contracts. 
Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, security price, 
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable, 
provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Insurance 
contracts may also transfer some financial risk.

Liabilities arising from financial guarantees, commitments and insurance contracts are initially measured at fair
value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantees, commitments or insurance contract. The
liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount and the present value of any expected
payment to settle the liability when a payment under the contracts has become probable.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: 
• the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit,

Software acquired is initially measured at cost. The cost of acquired software comprises its purchase price, including 
any import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable expenditure on preparing the 
asset for its intended use. After initial recognition, software acquired is carried at its cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Maintenance costs is not included but recognised and 
expensed immediately in the profit or loss.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability
to pay the related dividend is recognised.

• differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not reverse in the
foreseeable future and differences arising from investment property measured at fair value whose carrying amount
will be recovered through use.

Deferred taxation, which arises from timing differences in the recognition of items for accounting and tax purposes,
is calculated using the liability method. Deferred taxation is provided fully on timing differences, which are
expected to reverse at the rate of tax likely to be in force at the time of reversal. A deferred tax asset is recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the associated unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
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(q) Property and equipment
(i) Recognition & Measurement

(ii) Subsequent Costs

(iii) Depreciation

Leasehold improvements 20% (or period of primary lease where shorter)
Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 33.33%
Motor vehicles 25%

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if 
appropriate.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably.  All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred. Subsequent costs on 
replacement parts on an item of property are recognized in the carrying amount of the asset and the carrying amount 
of the replaced or renewed component is derecognized.

Depreciation is calculated on property and equipment on the straight line basis to write down the cost of each asset 
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reassessed at each reporting date. No depreciation is charged on item of property and equipment until they are 
brought into use. Depreciation  begins when an asset is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the 
asset is derecognised or classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations. Depreciation reduces an asset's carrying value to its residual value at the end of its useful 
life, and is allocated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives, as follows: 

Leasehold properties are depreciated based on the lease period agreed and lower of the unexpired lease period or 99
years for leasehold lands

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are expensed as incurred. Amortisation is 
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from the date that it 
is available for use. The estimated useful life of software is three years subject to annual reassessment.

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as 
part of that equipment. If significant parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, then they 
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of 
an item of property and equipment is recognised within other income in profit or loss.

Internally developed software is capitalized when the Company has the intention and demonstrates the ability to 
complete the development of the software and to use it in a manner that will generate future economic benefits, and 
can reliably measure the costs to complete the development. The capitalised costs include all costs directly 
attributable to the development of the software. Internally developed software is stated at capitalised cost less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment.
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(iv) De-recognition

(r) Statutory deposit

(s) Impairment of non-financial assets

(t) Insurance contract liabilities

(i) Life insurance contract liabilities

(ii) Group Life Business

(iii) Individual Business

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than investment property and deferred tax assets, 
are considered to be impaired when there exists any indication that the asset’s recoverable amount is less than the 
carrying amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amount of these non-financial 
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment 
losses of non-financial assets, related claims for or payments of compensation from third parties and any subsequent 
purchase or construction of replacement assets are separate economic events and are accounted for separately. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Individual risk business comprises term assurance and mortgage protection policies, for which a gross premium 
method of valuation is adopted. Reserves are calculated via a cash flow perfected approach taking into account 
future office premiums, expenses and benefit payments (death). Future cash flows are discounted back to the 
valuation date at the valuation interest rate.

An unexpired premium reserve is included for group life business, with an allowance for acquisition expenses as a 
percentage of premium. An allowance is made for IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) claims in Group Life to take 
care of the delay in reporting claims.

Upon disposal of any item of property and equipment or when no future economic benefits are expected to flow 
from its use, such items are derecognized from the books. Gains and losses on disposal of assets are determined by 
comparing proceeds with their carrying amounts and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income in the year of de-recognition.

Statutory deposit represents 10% of required minimum paid-up capital of the Company deposited with and held by 
the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) in pursuant to Section 10 (3) of the Insurance Act 2003. Statutory deposit is 
measured at cost.

The life insurance contract liabilities represents the liability due to policy holders at the end of every reporting 
period. The liability in the life fund account is determined by an actuarial valuation using a liability adequacy test 
model.
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(u) Reinsurance liabilities 

(v) Investment contract liabilities
Life Savings Plan / Deposit Administration

(w) Trade and other payables

(x) Provisions for other liabilities and charges

(z) Share capital & reserves
Share Capital

(aa) Dividends

(ab) Fair value reserves

(ac) Contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The unwinding of the amount 
is recognised as a finance cost.

Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of shares are recognized as deductions from equity net of any tax 
effects.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the financial statements in the 
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders. Dividends that are proposed but not yet 
declared are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Dividends on the Company’s ordinary shares are 
recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid or, if earlier, the period approved by the Company’s 
shareholders.

Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for the reinsurance contracts entered into by the Company 
and are recognised as a payable when incurred. The Company has the right to set-off re-insurance payables against 
the amount due from re-insurance and brokers in line with the agreed arrangement between both parties.

The Company has only one class of shares, ordinary shares. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. When new 
shares are issued, they are recorded in share capital at their par value. The excess of the issue price over the par value 
is recorded in the share premium reserve.

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of these shares are entitled to 
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 
until the assets are derecognised or impaired.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company; or the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events which is not recognised because it is 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount cannot be reliably 
estimated. Contingent liabilities normally comprise of legal claims under arbitration or court process in respect of 
which a liability is not likely to crystallise.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the 
due date of the liability is less than one year, discounting is omitted.

The reserve for life savings plan and deposit administration fund are taken as the amount standing to the credit of the 
policy holders as at the valuation date. Where savings policies still have active term assurance life covers, these are 
valued alongside the regular term assurance policies as described under the Individual Business policy above.
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(ad) Actuarial valuation

6 Required reserve by NAICOM
(a) Contingency reserve

Actuarial valuation of the life fund is conducted annually to determine the net liabilities on the existing policies and 
the adequacy of the assets repesenting the insurance fund as at the date of valuation. All deficits arising therefrom 
are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income while the surplus is appropriated to 
the shareholders and credited to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Contingency reserve is credited with the greater of 1% of gross premiums, or 10% of the profits. This shall 
accumulate until it reaches the amount of greater of minimum paid-up capital or 50% of net premium.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Financial risk management

1.1

• Improper assessment of the risks accepted by the company (Underwriting Risks);
• People, systems, technology and external events (Operational Risks);

Changes during the period

1.1.1 Risk management strategy and appetite

• Improper assessment of the risks accepted by the company (Underwriting Risks);

• To implement a risk awareness culture that underscores the Company’s risk profile and priorities;
• To provide a clear and consistent direction for the Company in all risk related matters;

• To ensure that errors of judgment or inefficient risk management practices are minimized;

• To provide a standardized framework and appropriate guidelines for managing all risk exposures;

Enterprise risk review
Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Limited ('PZL') is in the business of managing risks for public and private entities 
as well as individuals who transfer risks to it at a price (premium).  In the course of its business activities, the 
company is exposed to a number of risks.  A risk relates to any event that can prevent PZL from achieving its set 
objectives.  Mandated by the PZL Board, executive management has put in place measures to identify, assess, 
control and monitor exposures arising from the various risks that the company faces.  These risks include:

Taking into account the risk profile of the Company, an overall risk management strategy is developed, including a
risk management framework, a definition of risk appetite and associated risk mitigation strategies in each area. The
risk management framework provides a reference point in the systematic management of all risks affecting the
Company. Risk is then managed through various risk management techniques that are deemed appropriate to each
risk in a way to reduce the probability of negative events occurring and to mitigate the impact of any risk event
should it happen. Within the context of the Company’s strategy, the objectives of the risk management framework
include the following:

• Fluctuations in interest rates earned on money market placements and changes in market value of any assets held 
(Investment Risk);
• Inability or unwillingness of re-insurers or co-insurers to pay their obligations as they fall due, together with 
default on any assets held (Credit Risk);
• Inability to meet obligations as and when due because of the company’s inability to make cash available from its 
investments in a timely manner with minimal transaction costs (Liquidity Risk);
• Exposure to legal penalties, financial forfeiture and material loss as a result of the company’s failure to act in 
accordance with industry laws and regulations, including regulatory reserves falling short of the benchmark 
prescribed by law (Compliance Risk);• Other risks such as Legal Risk, Reputational Risk, Political Risk, Strategic Risk, Regulatory Risk (i.e. the risk 
arising from changes in future regulations) and other potential emerging risks.

There have been a number of changes during the period affecting the Company’s risk profile.  In particular, during 
2017, Prudential Africa Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of Prudential plc, acquired 51% of the shares in Zenith Life 
Assurance Company Limited.  As a result, Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Limited is subject to new and perhaps 
heightened strategic, regulatory, compliance and operational risk exposures.  For instance, from a compliance risk 
perspective, the Company is now subject to additional regulations and listing rules, including UK and US 
regulations such as the UK Bribery Act 2010 and the US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

• To implement sound risk management practices in compliance with the National Insurance Commission guidelines 
and international best practices;

• To ensure that the Board’s goals, objectives and risk appetite are translated into appropriate operating standards;

• To ensure that all risks are identified, effectively managed and that the returns are commensurate with the risk 
taken;

• To obtain assurance on the effectiveness of the risk management processes through comprehensive and regular 
risk reporting processes;
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• To help protect against unexpected losses and reduce the volatility of earnings;
• To help maximize stakeholder’s value, opportunities and earning potential on a risk-adjusted basis.

1.1.3  Risk Management Structure

• Takes and manages risk exposures in accordance with the risk appetite set by the Board;
• Identifies and reports the risks that the Company is exposed to, and those that are emerging;
• Promptly escalates any breaches or violations of risk management policies or instructions;
• Identifies and promptly escalates significant emerging risk issues; and

1.1.4  Risk Management Process

• The profiling of the risks that the Company faces
• The implementations of a strategy to manage the risks identfied
• The ongoing risk management processes
• Regular reporting of the  risks and related exposures.

• Rejection of risk
• Reduction of risk
• Transfer of risk
• Acceptance of risk

The organizational structures, reporting relationships, delegation of authority, and roles and responsibilities that the 
Company has in place to enable decision making and control of its activities on risk related matters is underpinned 
by the principles of the three lines of defence model:

First line of defence (risk taking and management):

Second line of defence (Risk control and oversight):

• Manages the business to ensure full compliance with its risk management framework.
  

• Assists the Board to formulate and implement the approved risk appetite framework, risk management plans, risk 
policies, risk reporting and risk identification processes;

• Reviews and assesses the risk taking activities of the first line, where appropriate challenging the actions being 
taken to manage and control risks and approving any significant changes to the controls in place.
  

Third line of defence (Independent assurance):
• Provides independent assurance on the design, effectiveness and implementation of the overall system of internal 
control, including risk management and compliance.
  

The risk management process at Prudential Zenith Life involves the following key steps (summarized below):

All decisions made in the daily management of the Company must then respect the strategy defined and the 
processes and controls put in place. In order to maintain the risk profile to a level consistent with the risk appetite, 
the main strategies:

The Company has established a set of processes and controls to monitor and control risk exposures and identify 
major events - internal or external - which have a significant impact on the risk profile of the Company. These 
processes and controls are outlined in policies (such as underwriting and investment policies), together with 
strategies (such as reinsurance and asset liability management stategies).
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1.2 Credit Risk

1.2.1

At 31 December 2017 Notes 2017 2016
N'000 N'000

Cash and cash equivalents 11              1,505,706     1,424,454           
Investment securities - held to maturity 12(a) 7,336,339     4,897,009           
Loans and receivables  12(c) 3,413            27                       
Trade receivables 12(d)            34,435                  66,441 
Other receivables (excluding non financial assets) 15            65,746                199,576 
Reinsurance claims recoverable 13          904,321             1,229,912 
Statutory deposits 18          200,000                200,000 

    10,049,960             8,017,419 

Credit quality

"No premium no cover policy"

Financial assets

The following table breaks down the Company’s main credit exposure at their gross amounts, as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 respectively. For this table, the Company has allocated exposures to each classification based on the
nature of the outstanding trade and other receivables. 

At 31 December 2017, all financial assets were neither past due nor impaired.

• its credit risk appetite and the framework under which its exposure to credit risk is limited;
• the required standards for effective credit risk management;
• the processes to enable senior management to effect the measurement and management of the Company’s credit 
risk profile in a consistent and coherent way; and
• the flows of Management Information required to support the measurement and management of the credit risk 
profile and to meet the needs of all key stakeholders.

As a result of the growing challenges arising from huge levels of outstanding premium reported in the financial 
statements of insurance companies, a revised guideline dated 1 January 2013 was issued by NAICOM on insurance 
premium collection and remittance in which it was specified that there shall be no outstanding premium in the 
books of any insurer as covers granted on credit are not recognized by the law. In compliance with this policy, all 
insurance policies written during the year were provided on a strict "no premium no cover basis". 

• Invested credit risk, which is defined as the credit portion of the risk of loss arising from core business 
investments (e.g. corporate bonds, mortgage loans and consumer loans) and is accepted in return for an appropriate 
level of compensation; and

• Counterparty risk, which is defined as the risk of loss arising from any other credit exposure (e.g. reinsurance 
contracts and derivatives) and is differentiated from invested credit in that the credit exposure is a by-product of the 
transaction or risk mitigation approach and is undertaken for reasons other than to earn a return on credit risk. This 
includes counterparty risks from reinsurance arrangements.

The Company’s approach to managing credit risk is set out in a policy that covers:

The Company is exposed to credit risk through two major sources, namely:
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Cash and cash equivalents

Debt securities

2017 2016
In thousands of naira
Nigeria       7,336,339             4,897,009 

      7,336,339             4,897,009 

1.3

1.3.1

The Company proactively manages its Market risk exposures within the acceptable levels.

1.3.2

Exposure to interest rate risk
Note 2017 2016

N’000 N’000
Fixed rate instruments
Placements with financial institutions 11       1,316,565             1,285,854 
Investment security - HTM 12(a)       7,336,339             4,897,009 
Loans and receivables - Staff loans 12(c)              3,413                         27 
Investment contract liabilities 20        (449,136)              (752,652)

      8,207,181             5,430,238 

Interest Rate Risk 

3.      Risk taking decisions are in line with business strategy and objectives set by the Board of Directors.
4.      The expected payoffs compensate for the risks taken.

The Company is exposed to a considerable level of interest rate risk i.e. the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 

1.      The individuals who take or manage risk clearly understand it.

Market risk

 Management of market risk

The Company undertakes activities which give rise to a considerable level of market risks exposures (i.e. the risk 
that the fair value of future cash flows of our trading and investment positions or other financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices). Market risks can arise from adverse changes in interest rates, foreign 
exchange rates, equity prices, commodity prices and other relevant factors such as market volatilities. The objective 
of market risk management activities  is to continually manage and control Market risk exposure within acceptable 
parameters, while optimizing the return on risks taken. 

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of N1.5billion at 31 December 2017 (2016: N1.4billion). The cash
and cash equivalent are held with reputable banks and financial institutions.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities and only with
counterparties that have an acceptable credit rating. The maximum exposure to credit risk for debt securities
classified as held-to-maturity at the reporting date per geo-political region was as follows:

The Company assesses, monitors, manages and reports on its market risk taking activities in line with an investment
policy which seeks to ensure that:

The Company did not have any debt securities that were past due but not impaired as at 31 December 2017 or 2016.

2.      The Company's risk exposure is within established limits.

5.      Sufficient capital, as a buffer, is available to take risk.
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Fair value sensitivity for fixed-rate instruments

Effect in thousands on naira
100bp 

increase
100bp 

decrease

31 December 2017
Financial instruments 82,072           (82,072)

82,072           (82,072)

31 December 2016
Financial instruments 54,302           (54,302)      

54,302           (54,302)      

Foreign Currency Risk

Exposure to foreign currency risk

TOTAL NGN USD GBP Others
Asset N'000 N'000 $'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalent           1,505,706        1,467,281 103            2                   -
Other receivables                65,746             60,173 15              - -
Investment securities           7,438,981        7,438,981 - - -
Trade receivables                34,435             34,435 - - -
Reinsurance asset           1,135,546        1,142,852 - - -
Statutory deposit              200,000           200,000 - - -
Total financial asset         10,380,414      10,343,722 118            2                   -

TOTAL NGN USD GBP Others
Liabilities N'000 N'000 $'000 £'000

449,136             449,136         - - -
Trade payables 136,319             136,319         - - -

111,753             111,753         - - -
697,208             697,208         - - -

          9,683,206        9,646,514              118                     2  - 
Net financial 
assets/liabilities

Investment contract liabilities

31 December 2017

Profit or loss

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would result in increased /
(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Other payables (excluding 
non-financial liabilities)

Total financial liabilities

The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risks as reported to the management of
the Company is as follows.

Cash flow sensitivity for fixed-rate instruments

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which
premium, claims and expenses are denominated. The functional currency of the Company is the Nigerian naira. The
currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are the Nigerian naira. However, the Company
receives some premiums, claims and expenses in foreign currencies and also pays some claims in foreign
currencies. The foreign currencies the Company transacts in include British Pound and United States Dollars.
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TOTAL NGN USD GBP Others
Asset N'000 N'000 $'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalent 1,424,454          1,399,752      78              2                   -
Other receivables 199,576             193,481                        20  - -
Investment securities 4,962,182          4,962,182      -  - -
Trade receivables 66,441               66,441           -  - -
Reinsurance asset 1,533,087          1,533,087      -  - -
Statutory deposit 200,000             200,000         -  - -
Total Financial Asset 8,385,740          8,354,943      98              2                   -

Liabilities
752,672             752,672         - - -

Trade payables 60,151               60,151           - - -

64,449               64,449           - - -
877,272             877,272         - - -

          7,508,468        7,477,671                98                     2  - 

The following exchange rates have been applied.

Naira 2017 2016
USD 1 360.00 304.25
GBP 1 486.94 394.13

Sensitivity Analysis

Effect in thousands on naira
31 December 2017 +10% -10%

USD (10% movement) 4,243                     (4,243)
GBP (10% movement) 121                           (121)

31 December 2016
USD (10% movement) 2,975                     (2,975)
GBP (10% movement) 98                                 98 

1.3.3 Equity price risk

The Company is exposed to equity price risk by holding investments quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE)
and other non-quoted investments. Equity securities quoted on the NSE are exposed to movement based on
movement in prices of specific securities held by the Company. For such investments classified as available for
sale, a 2% increase in the share price of equities at the reporting date would have increased equity by N1.5million
after tax. An equal change in the opposite direction would have reduced equity by N1.5million after tax.

A reasonably possible strengthning (weakening) of the US Dollar or Sterling against all other currencies as at 31
December 2017 would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency
and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This amount assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit or loss

Investment contract liabilities

Year-end spot rate

31 December 2016

Other payables (excluding 
non-financial liabilities)
Total financial liabilities
Net financial 
assets/liabilities
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1.3.4

(i) Cash balance with central Bank

(ii) Trade receivables

(iii) Treasury bills, bonds and equities

(iv) Other assets 

Fair value and fair value hierarchy

Cash amount with Central Bank of Nigeria represent cash held (mandatory central bank statutory deposit
requirements of 2017: N200 million, 2016: N200 million) . The fair value of this balance is the carrying amount. 

Fair valuation methods and assumptions

Trade receivables represents balances with contract holders, reinsurers and co-insurers. The fair value of this
balance is the carrying amount. 

Treasury bills represent short term instruments issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria. The fair value of treasury
bills and bonds at fair value through profit or loss are determined with reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets. The estimated fair value of treasury bills and bonds at amortized cost represents
the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted
at current market rates to determine fair value.

The fair values of quoted equity securities are determined by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical instruments. 

The determination of fair value for financial assets and financial liabilities for which there is no observable market
price requires the use of certain valuation techniques.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly - i.e. as prices - or indirectly - i.e. derived
from prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets
that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data. 

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where
the valuation techniques include inputs not based on observable data and unobservable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument's valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments. 

In some cases, if the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability categorised in different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument. 

Other assets represent monetary assets which usually has a short recycle period and as such the fair values of these
balances approximate their carrying amount. 

For financial instruments that trades infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and 
requires varying degrees of judgment depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing 
assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument. The Company measures fair value using the following 
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurement.
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In thousands of naira: Note
2017

Level 1 Level 2 Total 

 Available for sale  12(b)             75,335         27,307          102,642 

In thousands of naira: Note
2016

Level 1 Level 2 Total 

 Available for sale  12(b)             44,173         20,999            65,172 

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In thousands of naira:
2017

Carrying 
amount Level 1 Level 2 Fair value

Assets
          1,505,706 -                    1,505,706 1,505,706     

7,336,339          7,397,206                     -   7,397,206     
3,413                 -                           3,413 3,413            

 Trade receivables 34,435               -                         34,435 34,435          
 Reinsurance Asset 1,135,546          -                    1,135,546 1,135,546     
 Statutory Deposit 200,000             -                       200,000 200,000        
 Other receivables                65,746 -                         65,746 65,746          

        10,281,185        7,397,206    2,944,846     10,342,052 

 Liabilities 
             449,136 -                 449,136     449,136        

 Trade payables              136,319 -                 136,319     136,319        
             585,455 -                       585,455          585,455 

 Investment contract liabilities 

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analyse them by
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised. It does not include fair
value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized.

Loans and receivables
Investment securities HTM
Cash and cash equivalents
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In thousands of naira:
2016

Carrying 
amount Level 1 Level 2 Fair value

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents           1,424,454 -                    1,424,454 1,424,454     
Investment securities HTM 4,897,009          4,824,705                     -   4,824,705     
Loans and receivables 27                      -                                27 27                 

 Trade receivables 66,441               -                         66,441 66,441          
 Reinsurance Asset 1,533,087          -                    1,533,087 1,533,087     
 Statutory Deposit 200,000             -                       200,000 200,000        
 Other receivables              199,576 -                       199,576 199,576        

          8,320,594        4,824,705    3,423,585 8,248,290     

 Liabilities 

             752,652 -                 752,652              752,652 

 Trade payables                60,151 -                 60,151                  60,151 
             812,803 -                       812,803          812,803 

1.4 Liquidity risk

1.4.1 Liquidity risk management process
The Company has a sound and robust liquidity risk management framework that ensures that sufficient liquidity,
including a cushion of unencumbered and high quality liquid assets are maintained at all times, to enable the
Company to withstand a range of stress events, including those that might involve significant claim loss or
impairment of funding sources.

Liquidity risk is the potential loss arising from the Company’s inability to meet its obligations as they fall due or to
fund increases in assets without incurring unacceptable cost or losses. Liquidity risk is not viewed in isolation,
because financial risks are not mutually exclusive and liquidity risk is often triggered by consequences of other risks
such as  insurance claims risk, credit, market and operational risks.

Investment contract liabilities
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31 December 2017 Carrying 1-3 4-6 7-12 1-5 Above 5
Note amount  months  months  months Years Years Total

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,505,706  1,505,706     -             -                -              -                1,505,706       
Debt securities 12(a) 7,336,339  3,589,429     1,582,446   537,599        1,626,865   -                7,336,339       
Equity securities 12(b) 102,642     102,642        -             -                -              -                102,642          
Loans and receivables 12(c) 3,413         3,413            -             -                -              -                3,413              

Trade receivables 12(d) 34,435       34,435          -             -                -              -                34,435            
Reinsurance assets (excluding prepaid reinsurance) 13 1,142,852  1,142,852     -             -                -              -                1,142,852       
Statutory deposit 17 200,000     -                -             -                -              200,000        200,000          
Other receivables (excluding non financial assets) 14 65,746       65,746          -             -                -              -                65,746            

6,444,223     1,582,446   537,599        1,626,865   200,000        10,391,133     

Investment contract liabilities 19 3,089,229  3,089,229     -             -                -              -                3,089,229       
Trade payables 20 449,136     449,136        -             -                -              -                449,136          
Accruals and other payables 21 111,753     111,753        -             -                -              -                111,753          

3,650,118     -             -                -              -                3,650,118       

31 December 2016 Carrying 1-3 4-6 7-12 1-5 Above 5
Note amount  months  months  months Years Years Total

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,424,454  1,424,454     -             -                -              -                1,424,454       
Debt securities 12(a) 4,897,009  3,206,839     1,169,141   305,201        215,829      -                4,897,010       
Equity securities 12(b) 65,173       44,172          -             -                20,999        -                65,171            
Loans and receivables 12(c) 27              27                 -             -                -              -                27                   
Trade receivables 12(d) 66,441       66,441          -             -                -              -                66,441            
Reinsurance assets (excluding prepaid reinsurance) 13 1,533,087  1,533,087     -             -                -              -                1,533,087       
Statutory deposit 17 200,000     -                -             -                -              200,000        200,000          
Other receivables 14 199,576     199,576        -             -                -              -                199,576          

6,474,596     1,169,141   305,201        236,828      200,000        8,385,766       

Investment contract liabilities 19 752,652     752,652        -             -                -              -                752,652          
Trade payables 20 60,151       60,151          -             -                -              -                60,151            
Accruals and other payables 21 64,449       64,449          -             -                -              -                64,449            

877,252        -             -                -              -                877,252          

The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial assets and liabilities, and their maturity profiles:
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1.5 Underwriting risk

1.5.1 Insurance risk

1.5.2 Mortality and morbidity risks

1.5.3

1.6 Reinsurance  risk 

1.7 Operational risk

1.8 Capital management

The Company undertakes a regular monitoring of its solvency and capital adequacy and the application of regulatory 
capital by deploying internal systems based on the guidelines provided by the National Insurance Commission  
(NAICOM) for supervisory purposes. 

The Company has consistently met and surpassed the minimum capital adequacy requirements applicable in all areas 
of operations during the period.

The solvency and capital adequacy of the Company is reviewed regularly to meet regulatory requirements and and to 
enable the Company to adopt and implement the decisions necessary to maintain the capital at a level that ensures the 
realisation of the business plan with a certain safety margin.

The risk that actual experience in respect of the rates of mortality and morbidity may vary from what is assumed in 
pricing and valuation, depending on the terms of different products. The material classes of business most affected by 
these risks are group life products and individual life products (Term assurance, Mortgage protection and Savings 
plan). These products are sold to companies or directly to individuals providing a benefit on death. The main 
insurance risk relates to the possibility that rates of death may be higher than expected.

Underwriting is the process by which an insurer appraises a risk being presented by the proposer and decides whether 
or not to accept the risk and the consideration (premium) to receive. Weaknesses in the systems and controls 
surrounding the underwriting process can expose an insurer to the risk of unexpected losses which may threaten the 
capital adequacy of the insurer.  The Company's underwriting process is subjected to internal audit and  peer review 
to ensure effectiveness.

Insurance risk is the risk that future claims and expenses will exceed the value placed on insurance liabilities. It
occurs due to the uncertainty of the timing and amount of future cash flows arising under insurance contracts. The
timing is specifically influenced by future mortality, longevity, morbidity, persistency and expenses about which
assumptions are made in order to place a value on the liabilities. Deviations from assumptions will result in actual
cash flows differing from those projected in the policyholder liability calculations. As such, each assumption
represents a source of uncertainty.         

The Company manages its exposure to underwriting risk through an approved insurance risk policy, which sets out 
the key principles for the management of insurance risk on an ongoing basis, together with a set of defined 
underwriting processes and procedures.

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate and /or failed internal processes, people and systems or 
from external events, including legal risk and any other risks that is deemed fit on an ongoing basis but excludes 
reputation and strategic risk.  Operational risk exists in all products and business activities.  Operational Risk is 
considered as a critical risk faced by the Company. 

Claims management risk 
This is the risk that the insurer may be unable to manage the settlement process by which insurers fulfil their 
contractual obligation to policyholders. The Company has in place a claims management policy and procedure for 
ensuring that claims are handled fairly and promptly.

The Company ensures that it maintains adequate reinsurance arrangements and treaties in respect of the classes  of 
insurance business it is authorized to transact.

This is the risk of inadequate reinsurance cover which may be triggered by a situation such as the insolvency of a 
reinsurer, omission to cede risk to the treaty, wrong cession to the treaty, assumption of risks without reinsurance 
cover, acceptance of risks above automatic capacity and non-payment of reinsurance premium when due.
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Regulatory capital requirement

NAICOM requires that the Company maintains a minimum capital base of N2 billion. The Company's Capital base 
was N7,178 billion as at reporting period (2016: N4.547 billion).

In accordance with provisions of the Insurance Act 2003, the company had a solvency margin of N6,760,095 which 
is N4,632,683,445 in surplus of the regulatory requirement of N2,000,000,000 (minimum capital) for the year ended 
31 December 2017.
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2 Operating segments

Information about reportable segments

 Life Business  Life Business 
 Investment 
management 

 Investment 
management Total Total

In thousands of Naira 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

External revenues
Gross premium earned            3,534,893           3,344,234                               -                              -   3,534,893              3,344,234        
Reinsurance expenses             (930,950)            (634,679)                               -                              -   (930,950)                (634,679)         
Other revenue 195,533             167,939                                          -                              -   195,533                 167,939           
Total revenue            2,799,476           2,877,494                               -                              -   2,799,476              2,877,494        

Investment income                         -                          -                     1,255,595                   674,163 1,255,595              674,163           
                       90,214                     49,064 90,214                   49,064             

Expenses
Personnel expenses             (194,035)            (130,671)                               -                              -   (194,035)                (130,671)         
Other expenses          (2,131,683)         (2,425,495)                      (38,366)                   (37,913) (2,170,049)             (2,463,408)      
Operating Profit before tax               473,758              321,328                   1,307,443                   685,314                1,781,201         1,006,642 

Income tax expense             (241,561)            (251,887)                               -                              -   (241,561)                (251,887)         

Operating Profit after tax               232,197                69,441                   1,307,443                   685,314                1,539,640            754,755 

Assets & Liabilities

Reportable segment assets            7,655,194           7,084,099                   7,438,981                   496,282 15,094,175            12,046,281      
Reportable segment liabilities            3,944,566           4,607,687                      111,753                     64,449 4,056,319              4,672,136        

Geographical segment

The Company has two reportable segments, as described below, which are the Company’s strategic business units. The strategic business units offer different 
products and services, and are managed separately. The following summary describes the operations in each of the Company’s reportable segments:

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit before income tax, as 
included in the internal management reports. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant 
in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length 
basis.

Nigeria is the Company's primary geographical segment as all the Company’s income is derived in Nigeria. Accordingly, no further geographical segments
information is reported.
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3 Financial assets and liabilities
Accounting classification measurement basis and fair values

31 December 2017 Loans and Available- Held to Other financial  Total carrying Fair 
Note receivables for-sale maturity liabilities amount value

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Cash and cash equivalents 11 189,141             -                 1,316,565     -                      1,505,706          1,505,706     
Debt securities 12(a) -                     -                 7,336,339     -                      7,336,339          7,397,206     
Equity securities 12(b) -                     102,641         -               -                      102,642             102,642        
Loans and receivables 12( c) 3,413                 -                 -               -                      3,413                 3,413            
Trade receivables 12(d) 34,435               -                 -               -                      34,435               34,435          
Reinsurance assets 13 1,142,852          -                 -               -                      1,142,852          1,142,852     
Other receivables 15 65,746               -                 -               -                      65,746               65,746          
Statutory deposit 18 200,000             -                 -               -                      200,000             200,000        

1,635,587          102,641         8,652,904     -                      10,391,133        10,452,000   

Investment contract liabilities 20 -                     -                 -               449,136              449,136             449,136        
Trade payables 21 -                     -                 -               136,319              136,319             136,319        
Accruals and other payables 22 -                     -                 -               111,753              111,753             111,753        

-                     -                 -               697,208              697,208             697,208        

The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities, and their fair values.
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31 December 2016 Loans and Available- Held to Other financial  Total carrying Fair 

Note receivables for-sale maturity liabilities amount value
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Cash and cash equivalents 11 138,600             -                 1,285,854     -                      1,424,454          1,424,454     
Debt securities 12(a) -                     -                 4,897,009     -                      4,897,009          5,548,034     
Equity securities 12(b) -                     65,173           -               -                      65,173               65,173          
Loans and receivables 12( c) 27                      -                 -               -                      27                      27                 
Trade receivables 12(d) 66,441               -                 -               -                      66,441               66,441          
Reinsurance assets 13 1,533,087          -                 -               -                      1,533,087          1,533,087     
Other receivables 15 199,576             -                 -               -                      199,576             199,576        
Statutory deposit 18 200,000             -                 -               -                      200,000             200,000        

2,137,731          65,173           6,182,863     -                      8,385,767          9,036,792     

Investment contract liabilities 20 -                     -                 -               752,652              752,652             752,652        
Trade payables 21 -                     -                 -               60,151                60,151               60,151          
Accruals and other payables 22 -                     -                 -               64,449                64,449               64,449          

-                     -                 -               877,252              877,252             877,252        
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4         Gross premium income 
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

 Group life premium  3,644,651             3,238,725         
 Savings plan premium (See note (a)) 1,314                    344                   
 Single life premium  1,173                    1,193                
 Travel insurance (See note (b))                   37,268               30,621 
 Gross premium written 3,684,406             3,270,883         
 Unearned premium reserve                (170,280)             118,098 
 Changes in additional unexpired risk reserve (AURR)                   23,114              (45,370)
 Changes in additional reserve                     4,300                   (100)
 Changes in travel                    (6,647)                    723 

Gross premium income 3,534,893             3,344,234         

(a)

(b)

5        Reinsurance expenses
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

 Re-insurance premium ceded                 984,332             688,290 
 Changes in unexpired reinsurance premium                   (53,382)              (53,611)

930,950                634,679            

6        Commission income

2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Commission received 202,898 188,552            
Changes in deferred commission income (7,365)                  (20,613)            

195,533                167,939            

Savings plan premium is the premium charged for the life component of the Zenith Life Savings Plan, an Investment 
linked product. The life product/contract has been unbundled into the life component and the related income 
reported as part of gross premium.

Travel insurance is the premium charged for the life component/death benefit on the travel insurance product. The 
premium received on the travel insurance product is reported as part of gross premium. 

 Commission received comprises commission earned from reinsurance ceded by the Company during the financial 
year.  
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7        Net claims expenses
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

 Claims paid               3,319,350          2,052,212 
 Changes in outstanding claims (325,422)                       1,330,172 
 Changes in provision for claims incurred but not reported 
(IBNR) (331,198)              

            476,070 

2,662,730             3,858,454         

 Recoveries from paid claims (1,828,469)           (1,287,963)       
 Changes in recoverable on outstanding claims 325,591                (1,007,138)       
 Changes in recoverable on provision for claims incurred but 
not reported (IBNR) 78,597 (73,920)            

(1,424,281)           (2,369,021)       

 Net claims expenses 1,238,449             1,489,433         

8         Underwriting expenses  
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Acquisition expenses                 527,142             326,317 
Maintenance expenses                           -                         -   

527,142                326,317            

9(a) Investment income
2017 2016   
N’000 N’000

Interest income on held to maturity financial assets 1,074,238             539,395 
Loss on disposal on equity investment -                                      (3,733)
Dividend income on available for sale equity investments 1,351 6,044                
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents 148,209             102,600 

Interest income on statutory deposits 30,169 20,423              
Other income (see note (i)) 1,628                 9,434 

             1,255,595             674,163 

2017 2016   
(i)  Other Income N’000 N’000

 Net foreign exchange translation gain (see i(a) below)                        319                 8,820 
 Write-off excess provision for NAICOM levy                     1,261                       -   
 Income on contract cancellation                           -                      612 
 Personal loan                          48                        2 

                    1,628                 9,434 

i(a)  This represents gain arising from translation of bank account balances denominated in foreign currency. 
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9(b) Net income on investment contracts:
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000
Interest income 90,214                  49,064              
Reversal of excess guaranteed interest provision                   60,461                       -   
Interest on investment contract liability (31,878)                (32,650)            
Expenses related to deposit administration (6,488)                  (5,263)              

                112,309               11,151 

10      Management expenses
10(a) Depreciation and ammortisation 2017 2016   

N’000 N’000
17,985 7,101                

Amortisation (see note 16) 10,864 12,242              
28,849               19,343 

10(b)  Management expenses 2017 2016   

N’000 N’000
Personnel expenses (see 10(c) below) 194,035 130,671            
Auditor's remuneration 20,000 17,500              
Directors allowance 36,250 33,250              
Professional expenses 49,989 133,779            
Subscription and filing fees 17,484 3,797                
Naicom levy 26,733 26,487              
Corporate branding -                       38,239              
Rental expense 57,424 49,221              
Travelling /Hotel & Accomodation 6,683 9,910                
Advertisement and publicity 26,407                  12,893              
Tax/Vat expenses 14,478 52,679              
Repairs and maintenance 685 -                   
Administrative expenses 81,891 52,574              
Fines 875 150,000            

532,934                711,000            

Total 561,783                730,343            

10(c) Personnel expenses 

2017 2016   

N’000 N’000
Wages and salaries 185,661                119,463            

NSITF & ITF 2,721                    1,315                

Pension costs 5,653                    9,893                

194,035                130,671            

Depreciation (see note 17)
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11      Cash and cash equivalents
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Balances held with banks in Nigeria 189,141                138,600            
Placements with financial institutions (see (a) below) 1,316,565             1,285,854         

1,505,706             1,424,454         

(a)

12 Investment securities
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Investment securities- held to maturity  (see 12(a) below)              7,336,339 4,897,009         
Investment securities- available for sale (see 12(b) below)                 102,642 65,173              

7,438,981             4,962,182         

Maturity profile of investment securities
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Within 12 months              5,709,475 4,681,181         
After 12 months              1,729,506 281,001            

7,438,981             4,962,182         

12(a) Investment securities- held to maturity
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000
    Debt securities – fixed interest:
    Quoted debt securities - Bonds (see (i) below) 1,626,865 1,148,593         
    Quoted debt securities - Treasury bills (Federal Government of Nigeria) 5,709,474 3,748,416         

7,336,339             4,897,009         

(i) Quoted debt securities - Bonds.
The bonds comprise: 2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

15.10% Federal Government of Nigeria 27 Apr 2017 -                       932,764            
16.00% Federal Government of Nigeria 29 June 2019 898,238 -                   
15.54% Federal Government of Nigeria  Feb 2020 214,731                215,829            
14.50% Federal Government of Nigeria 15 Jul 2021 513,896                -                   

1,626,865             1,148,593         

 Placement with financial institutions comprises term deposits with maturity of less than 90 days from the value date 
of the instruments. 
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(ii) Movement to held-to-maturity investment securities -treasury bills
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000
Opening balance               3,748,416           3,646,803 
Additions               7,444,200           4,462,679 
Accrued interest receivables -treasury bills                  966,858              388,935 
Interest received during the year                           -                         -   
Redemption during the year             (6,450,000)         (4,750,000)
Closing balance 5,709,474             3,748,417         

(iii) Movement to held-to-maturity investment securities - bonds
Opening balance 1,148,593             1,897,901         
Additions 1,419,481             204,707            
Accrued interest receivables - bonds 197,595                199,524            
Interest received during the year (238,804)               (253,540)           
Redemption during the year (900,000)               (900,000)           
Closing balance 1,626,865             1,148,592         

(iv) Accrued interest on held-to-maturity investment securities 2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Interest income on held to maturity financial assets (see note (9a)) 1,074,238             539,395            
Interest income (see note (9b)) 90,214                  49,064              

1,164,452             588,459            

12(b) Investment securities- available for sale
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000
(i) Equities listed on the Nigeria Stock Exchange (see note 12bi below) 75,335 44,174              

(ii) Unquoted equity securities - mutual funds (see note 12bii below) 27,307 20,999              
102,642                65,173              

(iii) Movement in available for sale
     Opening balance 65,173                  106,009            
     Disposals -                        (251,480)           
     Impairment on disposal -                        228,333            
     Impairment loss charge for the year -                        (6,572)               
     Fair value changes during the year 37,469                  (11,117)             
     Closing balance 102,642                65,173              

12(b)(i) Equities listed on the Nigeria Stock Exchange
     Opening balance 44,174                  85,741              
     Disposals -                        (251,480)           
     Impairment on disposal -                        228,332            
     Impairment loss charge for the year -                        (6,572)               
     fair value changes during the year 31,161                  (11,847)             
     Closing balance 75,335                  44,174              

12(b)(ii)Unquoted equity securities - mutual funds
     Balance at the beginning of year 20,999                  20,269              
     fair value changes during the year 6,308                    730                   

27,307                  20,999              
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12(c) Loans and receivables
2017 2016   

Movement in loans and receivables N’000 N’000
     Opening balance 27                         1,482                
     Additions during the year 4,073                    -                    
     Repayment during the year (687)                      (62)                    
     Specific impairment -                        (1,393)               
     Closing balance 3,413 27                     

Maturity profile of loans and receivables
2017 2016

N’000 N’000

Within 12 months                      3,413                       27 
3,413                                          27 

12(d) Trade receivables
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Premium due from brokers                    34,435                66,441 
34,435                  66,441              

12d(i) Maturity profile of trade receivables
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Due within 30 days                    34,435                66,441 
Due after 30 days -                        -                    

34,435                  66,441              

13 Reinsurance assets
2017 2016   
N’000 N’000

Reinsurance prepaid - UPR (see note (ai) & (aii)) 137,719 98,290              
Reinsurance recoverable - IBNR (see note(bi) & (bii)) 193,957 272,554            
Reinsurance asset - AURR (see note (c)) 7,306 -                    
Travel insurance - UPR (see note (d)) 37,268 30,621              
Reinsurance recoverables due on claims (see note (ei) & (eii)) 904,321 1,229,912         

1,280,571 1,631,377         

The Company's loans and receivables has no collateral as security. The Company has no loans or receivables that are 
past due but not impaired. Insurance receivables are to be settled on demand and the carrying amount is not 
significantly different from the fair value. As at 31 December 2017, the Company had no insurance receivables that 
were past due or impaired whose terms were renegotiated. 

Trade receivables represent premium receivable due from brokers which are within 30 days in line with the 
NAICOM guideline on premium and have been collected within 30 days after year end.
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a(i)

a(ii) Movement in reinsurance prepaid - Group Life

Opening balance                    98,290                43,956 
Increase during the year                    39,429                54,334 

Closing balance 137,719                98,290              

b(i)

b(ii) Movement in recoverable - IBNR 
  

Opening balance                  272,554              198,634 
(Decrease) / increase during the year                  (78,597)                73,920 

Closing balance 193,957                272,554            

c Movement in recoverable - AURR

Opening balance -                        -                    
Increase during the year 7,306                    -                    

Closing balance 7,306                    -                    

d Movement in reinsurance prepaid - Travel Insurance

Opening balance                    30,621                31,344 
Increase / (decrease) during the year                      6,647                   (723)

Closing balance 37,268                  30,621              

e(i) Movement in recoverables due on claims

Opening balance               1,229,912              222,774 
Recoveries during the year             (1,828,469)         (1,287,963)
Increase during the year               1,502,878           2,295,101 

Closing balance 904,321                1,229,912         

e(ii) Reinsurance  recoverables due on claims comprise:
     Reinsurance due on paid claims                  197,685                43,358 
     Reinsurance due on outstanding claims                  706,636           1,186,554 

904,321           1,229,912 

Maturity profile of reinsurance assets
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Within 12 months 982,749                1,461,722         
After 12 months 297,822                169,655            

1,280,571             1,631,377         

Prepaid reinsurance represents the deferred cost on reinsurance contracts, the balance on the account is amortized 
into the income statement over the life of the reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance recoverables are estimated recoveries from reinsurance companies based on the actuarially determined 
liabilities under the Life fund account. 
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14 Deferred acquisition cost
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Deferred acquisition cost - Group Life 43,812 38,613              

43,812                  38,613              

Opening balance 38,613                  -                   
Cost incurred during the year 532,341                364,930            
Amortised during the year (527,142)              (326,317)          

Closing balance 43,812                  38,613              

15 Other receivables
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Receivable from IHI Bupa (see note (a) below) 5,573                    6,095                
Receivable from Zenith General Insurance Company Limited 59,995                  192,869            
Receivables from Zenith Securities Limited 12                         12                     
Witholding tax receivable 13,272                                        -   
Other receivables 166                                          600 
Prepayment (rent) 63,167                                        -   

142,185                199,576            

a

Maturity profile of other receivables
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Within 12 months 142,185                193,472            
After 12 months -                       6,104                

142,185                199,576            

Receivable from IHI Bupa represents a refundable deposit made by Zenith Life Assurance to IHI Bupa in relation to 
an alliance agreement both parties have on Zenith travel insurance business. IHI Bupa is a branch of an established 
international insurance company with experience in the design, marketing, selling and underwriting of international 
health care and travel insurance.

65



Prudential Zenith Life Insurance Limited (Formerly Zenith Life Assurance Company Limited)
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

16 Intangible assets
2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
Computer software:
Cost
Opening balance 52,377                                38,978 
Additions during the year                           -                 13,399 
Closing balance 52,377 52,377              

Accumulated amortisation:
Opening balance 32,580                  20,338              
Charge for the year                   10,864               12,242 
Closing balance 43,444 32,580              

Net book value:
Balance end of year 8,933                    19,797              
Balance, beginning of year 19,797                  18,640              

The intangible assets held by the Company are purchased computer softwares.
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17          Property and equipment

As at 31 December 2017

 Leasehold 
Improvement  Motor Vehicle 

 Computer 
Equipment 

 Office 
Equipment  TOTAL 

Cost N' 000 N' 000 N' 000 N' 000 N' 000

Balance as at 1 January 2017 8,264                           20,495                      4,997                     11,394         45,150                
Additions 15,667                         4,893                        2,582                     10,994         34,136                
Balance, end of year 23,931                         25,388                      7,579                     22,388         79,286                

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2017 1,377                           4,154                        4,165                     2,805           12,501                
Charge for the year 2,516                           11,438                      1,271                     2,760           17,985                
Balance, end of year 3,893                           15,592                      5,436                     5,565           30,486                

Net book value 

Balance as at 31 December 2017 20,038                         9,796                        2,143                     16,823         48,800                

As at 31 December 2016

 Leasehold 
Improvement  Motor Vehicle 

 Computer 
Equipment 

 Office 
Equipment  TOTAL 

Cost N' 000 N' 000 N' 000 N' 000 N' 000

Balance as at 1 January 2016 -                               1,820                        4,997                     3,988           10,805                
Additions 8,264                           18,675                      -                         7,406           34,345                
Balance, end of year 8,264                           20,495                      4,997                     11,394         45,150                

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2016 -                               1,820                        2,498                     1,082           5,400                  
Charge for the year 1,377                           2,334                        1,667                     1,723           7,101                  
Balance, end of year 1,377                           4,154                        4,165                     2,805           12,501                

Net book value 
Balance as at 31 December 2016 6,887                           16,341                      832                        8,589           32,649                

i.   No leased assets are included in the above property and equipment account (2016: Nil)

ii.  The Company had no capital commitments as at the reporting date (2016: Nil)
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18   Statutory deposit

2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

Statutory deposit 200,000 200,000       

Maturity profile of statutory deposit
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000

After 12 months 200,000          200,000       

200,000          200,000       

19   Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities comprise:

2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000

Outstanding claims (see a,a(i), b, c & d) below) 1,505,854 1,831,276    
Provision for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims  
(see a(ii) below) 798,831 1,130,028    
Group life business unearned premium (see a(iii) below) 728,734 585,868       
Individual life fund (see a(iv) below) 18,542 12,892         
Travel insurance (see a(v) below) 37,268 30,621         
Gross liability (see (a) below) 3,089,229 3,590,685    

19(a)

Life insurance contract liabilities comprises:
2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000

Outstanding claims (see a(i) below)         1,505,854      1,831,276 
Group life IBNR claims (see a(ii) below)           798,831      1,130,028 
Travel Insurance (see a(v) below)             37,268           30,621 
Unearned premium reserves including AURR (see a(iii)
below) 728,734          585,868       
Individual life fund (see a(iv) below)             18,542           12,892 
Gross liability (see 19 above)         3,089,229      3,590,685 
Reinsurance recoverables (see Note 13) (376,250)         (401,465)      
Net liability         2,712,979      3,189,220 

This represents amounts deposited with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) pursuant to Section 10(3) of the 
Insurance Act, 2003. 

The statutory deposit balance represents a restricted cash balance held with the Central Bank of Nigeria and 
is not available for use in the day to day activities of the Company.

Life insurance contract liabilities: Life insurance contract liabilities is assessed every year by qualified 
consulting actuaries in accordance with the Company's accounting policy.
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(i) Outstanding claims
The movement in outstanding claims during the year was as follows:

2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
Outstanding claims
Outstanding claims as at start of year 1,831,276                 501,104       
Increase in outstanding claims 2,993,928                 3,382,384    
Claims paid during the year (3,319,350)               (2,052,212)   
Balance, end of year 1,505,854                 1,831,276    

(ii) Provision for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims
Opening balance 1,130,028                 653,958       
Movement during the year (331,197)                  476,070       
Closing balance 798,831                    1,130,028    

(iii) Movement in group life business unearned premium 
2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
Opening balance                     585,868         658,496 
Increase/(decrease) during the year                     142,866         (72,628)
Closing balance 728,734                    585,868       

(iv) Movement in individual life fund
2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
Opening balance                       12,892             9,391 
Increase from actuarial valuation                         5,650             3,501 
Closing balance 18,542                      12,892         

(v) Movement in travel insurance
2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
Opening balance                       30,621           31,344 
Increase/(decrease) during the year                         6,647              (723)
Closing balance 37,268                      30,621         

19(b)

The aging analysis for claims reported and loss adjusted for life insurance contracts
2017 2016   

Days N' 000 N' 000
0- 90 228,170                    513,776       
91- 180 225,153                    596,087       
181-270 309,515                    354,699       
271-360 165,715                    177,841       
Above 360 577,301                    188,873       

1,505,854                 1,831,276    

Outstanding claims: represents the estimated ultimate cost of settling all claims arising from incidents 
occurring as at  the reporting date.
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19(c) Age analysis of outstanding claims

The Age Analysis of the outstanding claims reserves liability as at 31 December, 2017

Outstanding Days 0-90 91-180 181-270 271-360 361 + TOTAL
Claims per Claimant DAYS DAYS DAYS DAYS DAYS
1 - 250,000 2,282           1,542             373                     377              4,069                8,643            
250,001 - 500,000 3,638           4,966             2,515                  1,795           13,848              26,762          
500,001 - 1,500,000 20,429         8,298             8,235                  2,918           50,290              90,170          
1,500,001 - 2,500,000 15,438         1,694             8,300                  5,991           14,232              45,655          
2,500,001 - 5,000,000 24,432         18,080           5,488                  -               23,271              71,271          
5,000,000 - ABOVE 161,951       190,573         284,604              154,634       471,591            1,263,353     
Total 228,170       225,153         309,515              165,715       577,301            1,505,854     

19(d) Age of outstanding claims

Days
 Discharged
Voucher
Issued 

 Awaiting
Loss 
Adjuster's
Report 

 Abandoned/ No 
Documentation 

 Pending 
Litigation 

 Others- 
Awaiting 

Beneficiary 
Details  Total 

 N'000  N'000  N'000  N'000  N'000  N'000 

0- 90 61,882         -                 158,983              -              7,305                228,170        
91- 180 601              -                 222,174              -              2,378                225,153        
181-270 -              -                 309,494              -              22                     309,516        
271-360 -              -                 165,486              -              228                   165,714        
Above 360 -              -                 576,472              -              829                   577,301        
Total 62,483         -                 1,432,609           -              10,762              1,505,854     

19(e) Maturity profile of insurance contract liabilities
2017 2016   

N' 000

Within 12 months           3,032,830 3,525,131     
After 12 months                56,399 65,554          

3,089,229         3,590,685     

Actuarial valuation

2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
Gross liability 
     -     Individual 18,542              12,892          
     -     Group life 1,521,264         1,705,295     
     -     Travel insurance 37,268              30,622          
Additional reserves 6,300                10,600          

1,583,374         1,759,409     
Deposit administration (see 
Note 20)
     -     Individual              449,136         391,438 
     -     Group                       -           361,214 
Gross liability           2,032,510      2,512,061 
Reinsurance recoverable            (376,250)        (401,465)
Net liability 1,656,260         2,110,596     

Reasons for Outstanding claims

The latest available actuarial valuation of the life business funds was as at 31 December 2017. The actuarial value of the net liability 
of the fund was N1,656,259,137 (31 December 2016: N2,110,595,783).

The analysis of the gross liability due to the fund holders and amount recoverable from reinsurance is stated below:
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1

2

a) Individual Business

Group Business

b)

c)

d)i No specific adjustment has been made for immediate payment of claims.

ii

iii)

e) Where negative reserves were calculated, these were set to zero to prevent policies being treated as assets.

f)

3) The Mortality Table used in the valuation is the UK's Mortality of Assured Lives 1967-70 (A67/70) without adjustment.

4) The rate of interest used in the valuation is 13.00% pa.

5) Expenses for individual life business were reserved for explicitly at N6,685 pa increasing with inflation at 11% pa.

6)

7)

8) An expense overrun of N6,300,000 is provided as an additional reserve.

a)

9) The current valuation discloses a nil surplus.

O.O Okpaise 
Associate, Society Of Actuaries , USA
Fellow, Institute of Actuaries England,
The FRC no is FRC/2012/00000000738

Any policies issued according to substandard terms were valued using the same method and basis as standard policies.

The Company does not write with-profits business, therefore discussion of basis to be adopted for the distribution 
of profits among policyholders is not applicable.

The Company does not write with-profits business, so the general principles upon which the distribution of profits 
to policyholders is determined is not applicable.

The solvency level at the valuation date was 100%. That is, assets representing the Life and Deposit Administration 
Funds on the company’s balance sheet were 100% of the value of the actuarially calculated liabilities.

No specific adjustment has been made for expenses after premiums have ceased in the case of limited payment 
policies i.e. they have been allocated the same level of expenses as premium paying policies.

An unexpired premium reserve was included for Group life business. An Additional Unexpired Risk Reserve 
(AURR) was also held to allow for any inadequacies in the UPR for meeting claims in respect of the unexpired 
period. The claim rates underlying the AURR were based on pooled historical scheme claims experience. An 
allowance was made for IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) claims in Group Life to take care of the delay in 
reporting claims. This was based on a loss ratio approach, which uses historical claims experience to estimate the 
ultimate claim rates, from which the IBNR portion is determined.

For individual policies the valuation age has been taken as Age Last Birthday at the valuation date. The period to 
maturity has been taken as the full term of the policy less the expired term. Full credit has been taken for premiums 
due between the valuation date and the end of the premium paying term.

The valuation of the liabilities was made on the assumption that premiums have been credited to the accounts as 
they fall due, according to the frequency of the particular payment.

There are no policies on the books that are entitled to surrender. No allowance has been made in the valuation for 
the reinstatement of policies that lapsed before the valuation date.

Individual risk business comprises Term Assurance and Mortgage Protection policies, for which a gross premium 
method of valuation was adopted. Reserves were calculated via a cashflow projection approach, taking into account 
future office premiums, expenses and benefit payments. Future cashflows were discounted back to the valuation 
date at the valuation rate of interest. Any negative reserves were zeroised at the valuation date to prevent any policy 
being treated as an asset.

 The reserve for the Zenith Life Savings Plan has been taken as the amount standing to the credit of the policyholder 
at the valuation date. Where policies still have active term assurance life cover, this has been valued alongside the 
regular term assurance policies as described above.

The valuation has been made on the following principles which were determined by the Actuary:

The date of the valuation is 31 December 2017.
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20        Investment contract liabilities 2017 2016   
N' 000 N' 000

Life savings plan  (see (a) below) 449,136                   391,438            
Deposit Administration  (see (b)  below) -                           361,214            

449,136 752,652            

a Life savings plan  2016 2016   
N' 000 N' 000

Opening balance 391,438                   305,365            
Additions 388,070                   367,174            
Withdrawals (351,760)                  (243,564)          
Guranteed investment income on savings plan 21,388                     32,650              
Actuarial valuation surplus reversal adjustment -                           (70,187)            
Closing balance                     449,136             391,438 

2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
b Deposit administration

Opening balance 361,214                   329,027            
Addition                              -   -                   
Withdrawals (311,244)                  (38,000)            
Guranteed investment income on deposit administration                       10,490 -                   
Actuarial valuation adjustment                              -   70,187              
Reversal of excess provision                     (60,460)                       -   
Closing balance -                           361,214            

Maturity profile of investment contract liabilities
2017 2016   

N' 000 N’000

Within 12 months                       67,370 225,796            
After 12 months                     381,766 526,856            

449,136                   752,652            

21        Trade payables
2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000

Commission payable                       11,307 9,380                
Reinsurance payable                       39,359 30,158              
Deferred commission income (see note 21(a))                       27,978 20,613              
Premium deposits (see note 21(b)) 57,675                     3,132                

136,319                   63,283              

Life savings plan : These are receipts from individuals and employers (on behalf of their employees), respectively, 
of a savings nature. They are treated as liabilities in the Company's statement of financial position.

Deposit administration plan : This relates to a deposit administration plan operated by one the Company's 
customers on behalf of its employees. This was wound down during the year.
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2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
(a) Deferred commission income

Opening balance 20,613                     -                   
Additions during the year 202,898                   164,002            
Commission earned during the year (195,533)                  (143,389)          
Closing balance 27,978                     20,613              

(b)

Maturity profile of Trade payables
2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000

Within 12 months 136,319                   63,283              
After 12 months -                           -                   

136,319                   63,283              

22        Accruals and other payables
2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000

Accruals and other payables comprise:
Auditors fees accruals 20,000                     17,500              
Other tax payable 3,619                       1,858                
Intercompany payable (see (a) below) 20,550                     8,387                
NAICOM Levy 23,928                     26,485              
ITF payable 2,721                       1,315                
National Housing Fund payable 31                            10                    
Productivity bonus provision 25,000                     -
Professional fee payable 4,502                       -
Accrued printing cost 5,640                       -
Annuity software payable 5,762                       5,762                

111,753                   61,317              

(a)

Maturity profile of accruals and other payables
2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000

Within 12 months 111,753                   61,317              

111,753                   61,317              

Intercompany payable represents amounts owed to Veritas Registrars Limited with respect to cash disbursements 
made on behalf of the Company. All outstanding balances with related parties are to be settled in cash within twelve 
months of the reporting date. None of the balances are secured nor bear interest.

Amount in premium deposits represents unreconciled credit deposits into the Company's accounts.
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23       Current income tax liabilities
The movement in this account during the year was as follows:

2017 2016   
N' 000 N' 000

Opening balance 131,700        496,333         
Minimum tax 96,108          51,195           
NITDA levy (see note (a) below) 18,345          10,029           
Payments during the year (58,605)         (425,857)        
Closing balance 187,548        131,700         

a Minimum and Income tax expense recognised in income statement
2017 2016   
N' 000 N' 000

i Minimum tax 96,108          51,195           

ii NITDA levy 18,345          10,029           
114,453        61,224           

Deferred tax expense for the year 127,108        190,663         
Total income tax 241,561        251,887         

b The effective tax reconciliation is as follows:
Rate 2017 Rate 2016

% N' 000 % N' 000

Profit before tax 1,834,356      1,006,642      
Tax using the statutory corporation tax rate 30%           550,307 30%           301,993 
Non-deductible expenses 0% 5,658             0% 2,129             
Exempt income -19% (341,195)        -16% (163,632)        
Change in recognised deductible temporary 
difference -5% (87,662)          5%             50,136 
NITDA 1%             18,345 1%             10,066 
Minimum tax 5%             96,108 5%             51,195 

13% 241,561         25% 251,887         

The Company's tax expense in the year has been assessed based on the minimum tax requirements as there was no 
taxable profit in the year. Tertiary education tax has not been charged because the Company had no assessible profit 
for the year.
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24 Deferred taxation

(a) Deferred tax asset account 2017 2016   
N' 000 N' 000

Balance, beginning of year 571,936        762,599         

Reclassification from deferred tax liablity account -                -                 
(127,108)       (190,663)        

Balance, end of year 444,828        571,936         

No deferred tax was recognised in OCI during the year.

(b) Analysis of deferred tax asset as at year end is as follows
2017 2016   
N' 000 N' 000

Unrelieved losses 435,692        560,189         
Unutilized capital allowance 9,136            11,747           

444,828        571,936         

Maturity profile of deferred tax asset
2017 2016   

N’000 N’000
Within 12 months 
After 12 months          444,828 571,936         

444,828        571,936         

(c) Unrecognised deferred tax asset

Deferred tax charge for the year recognised in profit or loss

Deferred tax asset is recognised if, and only if, it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profit against 
which the loss or credit carried forward can be utilised or there is sufficient deferred tax liabilities which meet the 
offset criteria. Management is of the opinion that it is unlikely that the deferred tax asset would be recoverble due to 
lack of future taxable profits which is based on the assessment of historical financial results i.e tax lossess for 2016 
and 2017 financial years. Unrecognised deferred tax asset as at 31 December 2017 is N1.5bn (31 December 2017: 
N1.3bn).
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25 Share capital
Share capital comprises:

2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
Authorized:
3,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of N1 each 3,000,000         2,000,000          

Issued and fully paid: 3,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of N1 each 
In issue at 1 January 2,000,000         2,000,000          
Issue of shares during the period 1,000,000         -                     
In issue at 31 December 3,000,000         2,000,000          

26 Statutory contingency reserves
The movement in this account during the year is as follows:

2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
Balance, beginning of year 492,511            417,036             
Transfer from retained earnings 159,279            75,475               
Balance, end of year 651,790            492,511             

27 Retained earnings
(a) The movement in this account during the year is as follows:

2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
Balance, beginning of year 2,062,954 1,383,674
Interim dividend declared                        -                          -   
Profit for the year 1,592,795 754,755

3,655,749 2,138,429
Transfer to contingency reserves (159,279)           (75,475)             
Balance, end of year 3,496,470 2,062,954

28 Fair value reserves

In February 2017, the extra ordinary general meeting of shareholders approved the issue of 1,000,000,000 ordinary 
shares at an exercise price of N1 per share each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing shares of the 
Company (2016: nil). The shares issued were fully paid for in July 2017.

The statutory contingency reserve is prescribed under Section 21 (1&2) of the Insurance Act. The Company is 
mandated to maintain a statutory contingency reserve to cover for the fluctuations in securities and variations in 
statistical estimates.

The statutory contingency reserve is credited with an amount of not less than 1% of the gross premium or 10% of 
the net profits (whichever is greater) and the amount shall accumulate until it reaches the amount of the minimum 
paid-up capital. An amount of 10% of net profit being higher was credited to statutory contigency reserves during 
the year (2016: 10%)

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 
until assets are derecognised or impaired.

No interim dividend was declared during the year  (2016: nil).
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The movement in this account during the year is as follows:
2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
Opening balance (8,050)               3,066                 
Fair value gain / (loss) on available for sale shares 37,469              (11,116)             
Closing balance 29,419              (8,050)               

Fair value gain / (loss) on available for sale shares (see note 12b)                37,469               (10,880)
Transfer to Income Statement - Impairment on AFS securities (see note 12b)                        -                      (236)

37,469              (11,116)             

29 Earnings per share

2017 2016   

(i) Profit attributable to the Company's equity holders N' 000 N' 000

Profit attributable to shareholders 1,592,795         754,755             

(ii) Weighted average number of shares 2017 2016   

In thousands of units

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 2,000,000         2,000,000          
Effects of shares issued during the year 1,000,000         -                     

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 2,500,000         2,000,000          

Basic and diluted earnings per share (kobo per share) 64                     38                      

30 Related party transactions:

I Transactions with key management personnel

2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000
(a) Interest income comprises:

Interest earned on term deposits with Zenith Bank Plc 5,403                14,486               

The Company’s key management personnel, and persons connected with them, are also considered to be related 
parties for disclosure purposes. The definition of key management includes close members of family of key 
management personnel and any entity over which key management personnel exercise control. The key management 
personnel have been identified as the executive and non-executive directors of the Company. Close members of 
family are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that individual in their 
dealings with the Company. The amounts outstanding in respect of related party transaction as at reporting date to 
companies in which the directors have interest are set out below:

The calculation of basic earnings per share as at 31 December 2017 was based on the profit attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of N1.5 billion and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 2,500,000,000. The 
Company had no dilutive instruments as at 31 December 2017 (2016: nil). Hence the basic and diluted earnings per 
share are equal.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted average 
number of the shares in issue during the year.
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2017 2016   

N' 000 N' 000

(b) Premium written from related parties comprises:
Cyberspace Networks Limited 7,573                6,243                 
Zenith Bank Plc 726,137            840,716             
Zenith Medicare Limited -                    4,086                 
Zenith Trustees Limited 314                   -                     
Zenith Capital Limited 2,791                2,266                 
Zenith Securities Limited 1,845                1,506                 
Zenith Pensions Custodian Limited 2,405                1,264                 
Veritas  Registrars  Limited 1,860                1,674                 
People Plus Management Services Limited 103,003            139,280             
Zenith Asset Management Limited 1,187                -                     
Quantum Markets Limited 132                   -                     
Quantum Facilities Management Limited 1,654                122                    
Quantum Fund Management Limited 1,886                816                    

             850,787              997,973 

II ACCOUNT BALANCES

(c) Claims paid :
Zenith Bank Plc 83,464              96,524               
People Plus Management Services Limited 31,900              -                     
Cyberspace Limited 1,515                -                     

             116,879                96,524 

(d) Bank Accounts :
Zenith Bank Plc              188,900              138,600 

(e) Term Deposits :
Zenith Bank Plc                51,033                        -   

(f) Investment in managed fund :
Zenith Securities 75,334              44,174               
Zenith Capital Limited                  8,538                  8,538 

               83,872                52,712 

(g) Related party receivable :
Zenith General Insurance Company Limited 59,995              192,872             
Zenith Securities Limited 12                     12                      

               60,007              192,884 
(h) Related party payable

Veristas Registrars Limited 20,551              8,387                 
               20,551                  8,387 
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(h) Federal Government Treasury Bills and Bonds
Investment in treasury bills 5,709,474         3,748,416          
Investment in bonds 1,626,865         1,148,593          

7,336,339         4,897,009          

31 Litigations

32 Events after reporting date

33 Directors and employees

(a) Directors 
The remuneration paid to the directors of the Company were: 

2017 2016

N'000 N'000
Fees and allowances

disclosed above include amounts paid to :

The Chairman 4,750                4,750                 

The highest paid director 26,752              24,989               

2017 2016

Number Number
1,000,000  -  3,000,000                         7  - 
3,000,001  -  5,000,000                         4                          6 
Above 5,000,000                        -                            1 

11                     7                        

(b) Employees 2017 2017

Number Number

Management staff                       11 6
Non-management staff                       14 14

25                     20

The staff costs for the above persons was:
2017 2016

N'000 N'000
Salaries and wages 188,382            127,464             
Pension costs 5,653                1,892                 

194,035            129,356             

Fees and other emoluments (excluding pension contributions)

The average number of persons employed  (excluding Directors) in the 
Company  during the year was

There was no pending litigation against the Company as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: Nil)

The Company purchased Federal Government Treasury bills and Bonds through Zenith Bank Plc during the year.

There were no events after reporting date that requires disclosure or adjustment in the financial statement that has 
not been disclosed or adjusted.

The number of directors who received fees and other emoluments in Naira in the following ranges were :
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(c)

2017 2016
N

Number Number

600,001 -  900,000 - 8
900,001 -  2,000,000 4                       1
2,000,001 -  3,000,000 - 2
3,000,001 -  4,000,000 5                       0
4,000,001 - 5,000,000 6                       2
Above 5,000,000 10 7

25 20

(d) Key management personnel compensation for the year comprises:

2017 2016

N'000 N'000

Salaries, short term benefit and pension 19,390              17,627               
Allowances and benefits 2,500                                 2,312 
Fees as directors 4,750                                 4,750 

26,640              24,689               

34 Contravention of laws and regulations

Details Contravention
(a) The Company was fined for exceeding the limit on investment in violation Violation of investment limit

 of the 2015 prudential guidelines. A payment of N500,000
 was paid by the Company to NAICOM.

(b) The Company was fined N5,000 for late submission of quarterly returns. Late submission of regulatory returns
The payment was made to NAICOM by the Company.

(c) The Company was fined N370,000 as penalty for late remittance 
of NAICOM levy. The  payment was made to NAICOM by the 
Company.

During the year under review, the Company contravened some regulations during the year and appropriate penalties 
were paid. Details are:

Late remittance of NAICOM levy

The number of employees of the Company, other than Directors, who received emoluments in excess of N100,000
are shown in the following ranges:
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Other National Disclosures
Hypothecation
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Company Company
2017 2016 

Note N'000 N'000

(a) Investment in placements - Allocation
Shareholders funds                           -              601,101 
Insurance funds                           -              684,753 

                          -            1,285,854 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,316,565             1,285,854        
Investment securities- held to maturity 12(a) -                        -                  

              1,316,565          1,285,854 

2017 2016 
Note N'000 N'000

(b) Investment in treasury bills - Allocation
Shareholders funds 2,105,225             305,201           
Insurance funds               3,604,249          3,443,215 

              5,709,474          3,748,416 

Assets 
Quoted debt securities - Treasury bills 12(a) 5,709,474             3,748,416        

              5,709,474          3,748,416 

2017 2016 
Note N'000 N'000

(c) Investment in bonds - Allocation
Shareholders funds                           -              448,593 
Insurance funds               1,626,864            700,000 

              1,626,864          1,148,593 

Assets 
Quoted debt securities - Bonds 12(a) 1,626,865             1,148,593        

              1,626,865          1,148,593 

2017 2016 
Note N'000 N'000

(d) Total assets allocated to the insurance fund:

Placements                           -              684,753 
Treasury bills               3,604,249          2,958,584 
Bonds               1,626,865            700,000 

              5,231,114          4,343,337 

Assets allocation was done in accordance with NAICOM guidelines in force to meet the minimum requirement of 
Section 26(1)(c)of the Insurance Act 2003 for hypothecation of investments representing the insurance funds.
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2017 2016 
Note N'000 N'000

(e) Insurance contracts liability & Investment contract liability accounts
Life insurance contract liabilities 19               3,089,228          3,590,685 
Investment contract liabilities 20                  449,136            752,652 

              3,538,364          4,343,337 
Reinsurance Recoverables 19(c)                (376,250)           (401,465)

              3,162,114          3,941,872 

The total asset of N5.231 billion are allocated to insurance liability of N3.162 billion for the current year (2016: total
asset of N4.343billion allocated to N3.942billion).

Asset allocation was done in accordance with NAICOM guidelines in force to meet the minimum requirements of the
Section 26(1)(c) of the Insurance Act 2003 for hypothecation of investment representing the insurance funds.
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HYPHOTHECATION TABLE
Insurance 
Contracts

Investment 
Contracts 
Contracts

Policy holders 
fund

Shareholders 
fund Total

(a) (b) c=(a)+(b)

Cash and Cash  Equivalents                           -                           -                          -               1,505,706           1,505,706 

Investment Securities (HTM)-Treasury Bills              3,604,249                         -             3,604,249             2,105,225           5,709,474 

Investment Securities (HTM)-Bonds                           -              1,626,865           1,626,865                          -             1,626,865 

Investment Securities Available for sale                           -                           -                          -                  102,642               102,642 

Loans and Receivables                           -                           -                          -                      3,413                   3,413 

Trade Receivables                           -                           -                          -                    34,435                 34,435 

Reinsurance  Assets              1,280,571                         -             1,280,571                          -             1,280,571 

Other Receivables & Prepayment                           -                           -                          -                  142,185               142,185 

Defered Tax asset                           -                  444,828               444,828 

Deferred Acquisition Cost                           -                           -                          -                    43,812                 43,812 

Statutory deposits                           -                           -                          -                  200,000               200,000 

Intangible Assets                           -                           -                          -                      8,933                   8,933 

Property and equipment                           -                           -                          -                    48,800                 48,800 

Total Assets              4,884,820            1,626,865           6,511,685             4,639,979         11,151,664 

Total Funds Available              3,089,228               449,136           3,538,364             7,177,679         10,716,043 

Other Funds                           -                           -                          -                  435,621               435,621 

             3,089,228               449,136           3,538,364             7,613,300         11,151,664 

Excess/(Deficit) in Asset Cover              1,795,592            1,177,729           2,973,321           (2,973,321)                         -   
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Other National Disclosures
Value added statement
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
N'000 N'000

Net premium income         2,603,943      2,709,555 
Investment income & Commision received         1,601,803         842,102 
Claims incurred, commission paid and operating expense (2,148,506)      (2,899,497)   

Value added 2,057,240        100% 652,160        100%

Distribution :
Applied to pay :
Employee (Staff cost) 194,035           9% 130,671        20%
Government (Taxes) 241,561           12% (251,887)      -39%

Retained in business:
Depreciation and amortisation 28,849             1% 19,343          3%
To augment reserves 1,592,795        77% 754,033        116%
Value added 2,057,240        100% 652,160        100%
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AGE ANALYSIS OF OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

The Age Analysis of the outstanding claims reserves liability as at 31 December, 2017

Outstanding Days 0-90 91-180  181-270  271-360  361 + TOTAL

Claims per Claimant DAYS DAYS DAYS DAYS DAYS
1 - 250,000 2,282             1,542             373                377                     4,069             8,643             
250,001 - 500,000 3,638             4,966             2,515             1,795                  13,848           26,762           
500,001 - 1,500,000 20,429           8,298             8,235             2,918                  50,290           90,170           
1,500,001 - 2,500,000 15,438           1,694             8,300             5,991                  14,232           45,655           
2,500,001 - 5,000,000 24,432           18,080           5,488             -                     23,271           71,271           
5,000,000 - ABOVE 161,951         190,573         284,604         154,634              471,591         1,263,353      

228,170         225,153         309,515         165,715              577,301         1,505,854      
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AGE ANALYSIS OF OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

The Age Analysis of the outstanding claims reserves liability by claimant as at 31 December, 2017
AGE ANALYSIS BY CLAIMANT
Outstanding Days 0-90 91-180  181-270  271-360  361 + TOTAL

DAYS DAYS DAYS DAYS DAYS
1 - 250,000 14                  13                  6                    1                         28                  62                  
250,001 - 500,000 10                  13                  6                    5                         38                  72                  
500,001 - 1,500,000 23                  9                    11                  3                         61                  107                
1,500,001 - 2,500,000 7                    1                    4                    3                         7                    22                  
2,500,001 - 5,000,000 7                    5                    2                    -                     7                    21                  
5,000,000 - ABOVE 7                    14                  14                  6                         29                  70                  

68                  55                  43                  18                       170                354                
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LIFE BUSINESS REVENUE ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Group Life
Single Life 
Premium

Saving Plan 
Premium

Travel 
Insurance Total

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Gross premium written 3,644,651    1,173           1,314          37,268        3,684,406       
    Changes in 
Unearned premium (142,866)      -               -              (6,647)        (149,513)         
Gross premium income 3,501,785    1,173           1,314          30,621        3,534,893       
Reinsurance expenses (900,988)      -               -              (37,268)      (938,256)         

Net premium income 2,600,797    1,173           1,314          (6,647)        2,596,637       
Fees and commissions income 190,902       -               -              4,631          195,533          
Total income 2,791,699    1,173           1,314          (2,016)        2,792,170       

Direct claims paid 3,319,350    -               -              -             3,319,350       
Changes in Outstanding Claims (325,422)      (325,422)         
Changes in provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) (331,198)      -               -              -             (331,198)         

Gross claims incurred 2,662,730    -               -              -             2,662,730       
Reinsurance claims 
     recoveries/recoverable (1,431,587)   -               -              -             (1,431,587)      
Net claims expenses 1,231,143    -               -              -             1,231,143       

Underwriting Expenses
Commission Expense (527,142)      -               -              -             (527,142)         
Underwriting expenses and acquisition costs (527,142)      -               -              -             (527,142)         

Increase in individual life fund -               (5,650)          -              -             (5,650)             

Underwriting profit 3,495,700    (4,477)          1,314          (2,016)        1,028,235       
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Other National Disclosures
Financial Summary
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Cash and cash equivalents 1,505,706       1,424,454   1,747,983     1,404,212   1,342,453    
Financial assets:
Investment securities held to maturity 7,336,339       4,897,009   5,544,704     5,267,151   3,644,767    
Investment securities available for sale 102,642          65,173        106,009        123,953      191,579        
Loans and receivables 3,413              27               89                  -                  1,393            
Trade receivables 34,435            66,441        12,958          33,774        -               
Reinsurance assets 1,280,571       1,631,377   496,708        306,196      152,468        
Deferred acquisition cost 43,812            38,613        -                    -                  -               
Other receivables and prepayments 142,185          199,576      3,225            3,225          73,042          
Deferred  tax asset 444,828          571,936      762,599        -                  275               
Statutory deposits 200,000          200,000      200,000        200,000      200,000        
Property and equipment 48,800            32,649        5,405            6,839          1                   
Intangible asset 8,933              19,797        18,640          8,549          751
Total assets 11,151,664     9,147,052   8,898,320     7,353,899   5,606,729    

Liabilities
Trade payables 136,319          60,151        23,779          34,064        124,959        
Other payables and liabilities 111,753          64,449        2,085,747     924,177      36,923          
Insurance contract liabilities 3,089,229       3,590,685   1,854,293     1,429,053   1,070,235    
Investment contract liabilities 449,136          752,652      634,392        419,596      213,208        
Current income tax liabilities 187,548          131,700      496,333        188,038      175,470        
Deferred tax liability - -                  -                    -                  972               
Total liabilities 3,973,985       4,599,637   5,094,544     2,994,928   1,621,767    

Net assets 7,177,679       4,547,415   3,803,776     4,358,971   3,984,962    

Equity
Share capital 3,000,000       2,000,000   2,000,000     2,000,000   2,000,000    
Retained earnings 3,496,470       2,062,954   1,383,675     2,447,011   2,128,277    
AFS valuation reserves 29,419            (8,050)         3,066            (401,974)     (342,112)      
Statutory contingency reserve 651,790          492,511      417,035        312,962      199,769        
Total equity 7,177,679       4,547,415   3,803,776     4,357,999   3,985,934    

Profit and loss account

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Gross premium earned 3,534,893       3,344,234   2,991,044     2,393,159   1,356,346    

Net premium earned 2,603,943       2,709,555   2,337,892     1,942,778   1,142,318    

Profit before taxation 1,834,356       1,006,642   867,407        1,373,090   981553
Taxation (241,561)         (251,887)     173,330        (241,163)     (140,723)      
Profit after taxation 1,592,795       754,755      1,040,737     1,131,927   840,830        
Transfer to contingency reserve (159,279)         (75,475)       (104,073)       (113,193)     (84,083)        
Transfer to retained earnings 1,433,516       679,280      936,664        1,018,734   756,747        

Earnings per share  (basic &diluted) 64k 38k 52k 57k 42k
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